
Agenda 
City of Olive Branch 

Planning Commission Meeting 
6:00 PM 

December 9, 2025 

This meeting will be live-streamed and recorded on the City’s YouTube channel 
at https://www.youtube.com/@cityofob.   
 
Call to Order: 

 
Roll Call: 

 
Approval of Minutes: 

1. Minutes from Meeting of November 12, 2025 

 
Old Business: 

1. Application for a Preliminary Plat for Fox Paw Creek Subdivision, submitted by Chance 
Walker, Smith-Walker LLC, on behalf of property owner Cynthia Fox, Trustee.  The 
request is to subdivide 108.0+/-acres into 262 lots and 6 Common Open Spaces.  The 
subject property has an accompanying application request to rezone from A-R, 
Agricultural-Residential District, to R-2, Single-Family Residential District and is located 
on the west side of Davidson Rd, approximately 0.25 mile south of Goodman Rd.  (Tabled 
at Meeting of  November 12, 2025). (File # SD25-0034).  

2. Application for a Zoning Map Amendment, submitted by Bob Farley, Farley Surveying, on 
behalf of Vish Prasad, Vants Realty LLC, property owner. The request is to rezone 2.06+/-
acres from M-2, Heavy Industrial District, to C-2, Highway Commercial District, for the 
purpose of establishing a medical clinic at this location.   The subject property is at the 
northeast corner of Hacks Cross Rd and Airport Rd, known as 8274 Hacks Cross Rd. 
(Tabled at Meeting of  November 12, 2025). (File# ZP25-0012). 

3. Application for a Final Plat for Prasad Rheumotolgy Subdivision, submitted by Bob Farley, 
Farley Surveying, on behalf of Vish Prasad, Vants Realty LLC, property owner. The 
request is to subdivide 2.06+/-acres into a single lot.  The subject property is at the 
northeast corner of Hacks Cross Rd and Airport Rd, known as 8274 Hacks Cross Rd. 
(Tabled at Meeting of  November 12, 2025).   (File# SD25-0031). 

 
New Business: 

1. Application to amend Preliminary Plat Approval Condition number 6 of Rosewood 
Subdivision, submitted by Chance Walker, Smith-Walker Engineering, on behalf of 
property owner Jon Reeves.  The request is to reduce the minimum heated area of houses in 
the Agricultural-Residential District (A-R) zoned areas in the north of the subdivision from 
3000 sq. ft. to 2800 sq. ft. and to decrease the minimum heated area of houses in all other 
areas of the subdivision from 3000 sq. ft. and 2800 sq. ft. to 2400 sq. ft. The 82.37+/- acre 
subject property is zoned A-R and R-1, (Single-Family Residential District) and is located 
on the east side of Craft Road and north of College Road, known as 7200 College Road. 
(File # SD-25-0039). 

2. Application for a Final Plat for Ansley Point Subdivision, submitted by Andy Richardson, 
R&H Engineering & Surveying, LLC, on behalf of Sunset Creek Farms, LLC, Kevin 
Bynum, property owner.  The request is to create two residential lots totalling 0.82+/-acres. 
 The subject property is zoned R-1, Single-Family Residential District.  The property is 
located at the northeast corner of Hamilton Cir N and Hamilton Cir W, known as 6602 
Hamilton Cir N. (File # SD-25-0036). 

3. Application for a Final Plat for Malco Olive Branch Subdivision, Phase 3, submitted by 

Page 1 of 160

https://www.youtube.com/@cityofob


Caleb Gill, Civil-Link, on behalf of property owner Mike Bailey.  The request is to create a 
single commercial lot of 3.22+/-acres.  The subject property is zoned C-4, Planned 
Commercial District, and is located at the south end of Grandiflora Drive, and north of 
Goodman Road.  (File #SD-25-0038). 

4. Application to Amend the Project Text for The Oaks at Parkview Heights PUD, submitted 
by David Baker, Fisher Arnold, Inc., on behalf of property owner, Trey Hart, Mainland 
MCA Olive Branch, LLC.  The request is to change the permitted uses from Memory Care 
and Assisted Living Facility to detached Single Family Residential in Area 3B.  The 
subject property is zoned PUD, Planned Unit Development, and the 6.99+/-acre Area 3B is 
located on the west side of Parkview Blvd, and south of Goodman Road, known as 6755 
and 6785 Parkview Blvd. (File # PD-25-0002). 

5. Application for a Preliminary Plat for The Crossings at Olive Branch Subdivision, 
submitted by Mike Davis, The Reaves Firm, on behalf of Cooper Realty Investments Inc, 
property owner.  The request is to subdivide 41.5+/-acres into 7 lots.  The subject property 
is zoned C-2, Highway Commercial District, and is located at the southwest corner of Hwy 
302 and Hacks Cross Road. (File # SD-25-0037). 

6. Application to Amend the Project Text for Robinson Crossing PUD and preliminary 
development plan for Area 9, submitted by Shane King,  Houston Engineering, on behalf of 
property owners Barry Bridgforth and Pleasant Hill Land and Development Company.  The 
request includes preliminary development plan and stipulations for permitted convenience 
store with fuel pumps and layout plan for car wash as a standalone use. The 5.72+/-acre 
subject Area 9 is zoned PUD, Planned Unit Development, and is located at the southeast 
corner of Church Road and Malone Road. (File # PD-25-0001). 

 
Adjournment 

 

Page 2 of 160



MINUTES FOR THE CITY OF OLIVE BRANCH PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING NOVEMBER 12, 2025 

 

The Olive Branch Planning Commission meeting was held on Wednesday, November 12, 2025, 
in the Municipal Court Room located at 6900 Highland Street, at 6:00 p.m. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Dorr, Chairman of Planning Commission, at 6:00 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 

Janice Lewis, Dion Jones, Diane Senger, Pat Dorr, Donny Singh and Mark Long were present, 
and a quorum was established. Steve Stratton was absent. Venard Asongayi, Director, Kevin 
Norman, Senior Planner, Jeremiah McCroskey, Associate Planner, and Heather James, 
Planning Technician, were present from the Planning and Development Department.  
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 14, 2025 MEETING 
 
Mr. Dorr asked if anyone had any questions, comments or motions regarding the minutes of the October 
14, 2025 meeting.  Mr. Jones made a motion to approve the minutes as presented.  Mrs. Lewis 
made the second and the motion was approved as follows:  
 
Pat Dorr    Yes       Steve Stratton    Yes        Donny Singh     Yes        Dion Jones   Yes    
Janice Lewis  Yes      Mark Long  Absent        Diane Senger    Absent 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Application for a Zoning Map Amendment, submitted by submitted by Chance Walker, Smith-
Walker LLC, on behalf of property owner Cynthia Fox, Trustee.   The request is to rezone 
108.0+/-acres from A-R, Agricultural-Residential District, to R-2, Single-Family Residential 
District for the purpose of creating Fox Paw Creek, a residential subdivision.  The subject 
property is located on the west side of Davidson Rd, approximately 0.25 mile south of 
Goodman Rd.    (File # ZP25-0013). 

 
• APPLICATION SUMMARY 

 The applicant, Chance Walker, Smith-Walker LLC, on behalf of property owner Cynthia 
Fox, Trustee, has submitted for consideration a request to rezone a ±108 ac tract on the west side 
of Davidson Rd from A-R, Agricultural Residential to the R-2, Single-Family Residential zoning 
district. The subject property is directly across from the intersection of Davidson Rd. and Timber 
Oaks Dr. The applicant has also submitted a concurrent preliminary plat application for the tract 
which reflects the intention to create a 262 detached single family residential subdivision to be known 
as “Fox Paw Creek Subdivision”. There is a 9,000sf minimum lot area requirement in the R-2, Single-
Family Residential zoning district. Staff recommends three options for the Planning Commission’s 
consideration: denial of the request upon finding that the character of the area proximate to the 
subject property has not changed significantly to align with the requested R-2 Zoning District; or 
approval upon finding that the character of the area remote to the concerned parcel has changed 
significantly that the R-2 Zoning District would align with, and there is a public need for the rezoning; 
or table the application till the City Engineer reviews the traffic study and makes other considerations 

Page 3 of 160



regarding improvements on Davidson Rd that would be practically associated with the development 
of the property under the R-2 Zoning District. 

 
• STAFF PRESENTATION 

  Kevin Norman, Senior Planner, presented the staff report, which is included herein 
by reference (File # ZP25-0013).   

 
• PLANNING COMMISSION INQUIRY AND STAFF RESPONSE 

Mr. Jones asked when the City Engineer planned to review the traffic study.  Mr. 
Asongayi advised that it would be reviewed as soon as possible.   

 

• PUBLIC HEARING 
Mr. Dorr asked if anyone was present to speak about the application. 
 
o Proponents: 

▪ Jason Gambone, Garden Street Communities, 4749 W Petite Loop, 
Olive Branch, MS – He also introduced Chance Walker & John 
Vanderplum - His company is the lot developer for Adams Homes, the 
31st largest builder in the US.  They do builds all over the country and 
one of the largest builders in Olive Branch.  They build all different 
price ranges and make them attainable in the market.  This is a great 
project and one we can all be proud of.  He advised there are 15,000 
single family homes in Olive Branch.  He disagreed with the 
presentation; they are not proposing 522 lots, but rather 262 lots, 
ranging in size from 9100 sq feet and up.  Most are larger than that.  
All of the houses are facing inward.  Nothing faces Davidson and there 
will be a 35-40 foot buffer along Davidson.  Most of the lots back up to 
a green space in the development.  There are waterways under 
review.  If they are determined to be “blue line streams” they would 
require certain buffers.  They’ve built in for that now.  If the MDEQ 
determination is that some of these are not streams, the green space 
will be lessened and can potentially increase some of the lot sizes by 
adding depth.  Can’t make them wider, but possibly can make them 
deeper by adding from the green space areas if they are not needed. 
He advised it’s very expensive to buy the land and costs money to 
develop.  The total costs are distributed over the number of lots and 
they get a per lot cost.  Any reduction in lot numbers, just increases the 
per lot cost and adds to the cost of the property and house.  If it 
increases by too much, then it becomes less attainable by the 
consumer.  He said the proposed site is a quarter mile from Goodman 
and the area was annexed in 1996.  He said there have been 
numerous changes along Goodman since 1996.  When there is no 
central sewer system, lots have to be larger because they are required 
to have their own septic systems.  The city is now expanding those 
utilities into the previously annexed areas.    He said the smaller lot 
subdivisions developed after sewer was available and the larger lots 
were required for private septic systems.  The Comp Plan explains that 
sewer extension is the major factor in changing character of areas.  
This development is comparable to Ivy Trails, in terms of density.  
There will be a landscape buffer that will hide houses from view along 
Davidson. This is a better way of transitioning than with changes in lot 

Page 4 of 160



sizes.   He said that building permits have dropped in Olive Branch 
because of the change in market.  There is a national shortage of 
about 4 ½ million housing units.  These are intended to be attainable 
houses, according to the market.  They are estimating that the first 
houses will be built within 2 years.  He said the traffic study shows 
2029 as the estimated build out completion date, but he thinks it will be 
later than that.   They are estimating that most of the traffic will use the 
northern entrance. Since there are no residences on the east side 
north of the entrance, it will have minimal impact.  Post development, 
the traffic study shows all intersections remain functional levels of 
service.  There are 5 lots across the street between 6070 & 6708 
Davidson that are zoned commercial.  The total trips generated from 
these 5 commercial lots , if medical or dental offices, would be more 
than the 262 residential lots.    If 2 lots are developed as fast food 
restaurants, they exceed the traffic numbers for these 262 lots.  The 
City Engineer has asked for certain improvements.  There is a section 
of Davidson Rd (north of this property) that has been widened on the 
east side to about 30 feet.  The Engineer has asked us to widen down 
to the front of the development.   The City Engineer wants the street 
widened between the 2 entrances and wants to extend the sidewalk on 
the eastern side of Davidson and cross the road with a crosswalk to 
connect to the development for a possible future trail network that 
doesn’t currently exist.   This property is currently not generating any 
taxes.  The buildout alone of 262 houses are estimated to generate 
over $850,000 in taxes for the schools, county and city.  This is not 
including the residents and the taxes the people would generate.  It’s a 
national problem that young families are being frozen out of the 
market.  He said the HOA would maintain all the grass along Davidson 
Rd.   

 
o Opponents:  

▪ Eugene Rose, 6070 Timber Oaks Dr, Olive Branch, MS.  Regarding 
the sidewalk to be extended from where it ends.  The road is already 
narrow and hard to pass.  Larger trucks will be harder to get down.  He 
said there are already too many people here.  From Davidson Rd to 
Cayce Rd there are 22 red lights.  He hopes there is a plan for the 
traffic.  It backs up all the way into Olive Branch from outside the 
district.  Start planning for what we already have.  They must have the 
sidewalk added and widened.   

▪ Jacobi Fentress, 6335 Autumn Oaks Dr, Olive Branch, MS.  In 
Wedgewood, Autumn Oaks & Cherokee, the homes are $800,000 to 
$1M houses.  The smaller house will bring crime.  We don’t want these 
houses.  They will bring the value down.  We’ve already accepted 
Captain D’s and Popeye’s with their grease and pollution.  Police will 
be in an out of the development.   

▪ Dante Salati, 6320 Autum Oaks Dr, Olive Branch, MS. Agrees with 
previous commenter  

▪ Trey Peters, 6634 Darren Dr, Olive Branch, MS. He’s concerned about 
infrastructure.  He think people will cut through Cherokee Meadows 
trying to get to Goodman and there are a number of small kids in the 
area.  He said an analysis of Adams Homes is not the best feedback.  

Page 5 of 160



He believes they will lower property values.  He also worries about 
school districting and rezoning.   

▪ Steve Case, 6560 Davidson Rd, Olive Branch, MS – there are 2 roads 
in the plat.  What is the city doing with the outlet roads?  If there was 
another access point, there would be a lot of traffic on Davidson.  The 
widening and buffer needs to be done first.  Why can’t all the lots be 
bigger?  They want larger lots throughout the whole subdivision.  He’s 
worried about construction traffic and says Davidson Rd will be a 
mess.  He was an electrical inspector for 16 years.  Normally, they 
clear the whole area.  If you make bigger lots and charge more per lot, 
you’ll end up the same.  The trail system hasn’t really been talked 
about and he hasn’t seen it on the plat.   

▪ Leigh Turner, 6260 Autumn Oaks Drive, Olive Branch, MS. 262 lots is 
about 655 residents, with about 92-150 school aged children.  Pleasant 
Hill Elementary and Desoto Central are already overcrowded.  1200 
additional cars onto Goodman is a lot.  Most people will cut across and 
go through Timber Oaks to get out of the neighborhood.  Why not use 
Hughey as an access point?  Why aren’t the 2 roads on the west side 
not addressed?  Price points are a concern, there is an environmental 
concern and worried these won’t be high quality.   

▪ Pam Korte, 6035 Autumn Point Cv. Olive Branch, MS -  they moved 
here from Wisconsin  and they looked at Adams houses.  They were 
too cramped.  She said Ivy Trails is not comparable to Autumn Oaks 
and Autumn Oaks is adjacent to the proposed development.   

▪ Bernice Morgan, 6328 Timber Oaks, Olive Branch, MS –the street in 
this new development will butt up into their street.  They get a lot of 
traffic in their neighborhood already from people that don’t live there.  
Captain D’s car wash area doesn’t come into Timber Oaks.  All school 
bus traffic will be worse.  Schools are already overtaxed.  We get 
enough new development in this area.  What keeps them from 
developing 500 lots instead.   
 
 

• REBUTTAL 
Mr. Gambone said he’s lived here for 9 ½ years in a less than 2000 sq foot house and 

has never been the victim of a crime and the property value has increased by at least 50% in 
that time.  The idea of an increase in crime is inaccurate.  He said that most traffic will go to 
the north and the traffic study supports that.  He said that people can’t afford $600k-$700k 
houses right now.  He said Wedgewood is not even going to connect to this one because of 
an Army Corps of Engineer waterway that separates the areas.  Hughey Rd doesn’t connect 
and the church wasn’t interested in selling to make a connection.  The roads to the west are 
stubbed out for the City to develop for future plans, according to the Comp Plan and the 
future land use plan.  These houses are intended for young families starting out and older 
residents looking to downsize.  He said if the builder could build larger homes on larger lots, 
they would, but the market research doesn’t support that.   

 
• PLANNING COMMISISON DISCUSSION  

 Mr. Jones asked if they would consider rezoning to PUD, rather than R2.  He said the 
PUD would give the Planning Commission more control over the approval.  Mr. Gambone advised 
the plat that has been presented is what they are asking for and have been happy to include any 
additional improvements.  We’ve presented everything that would be included in a Planned 

Page 6 of 160



Development.   Mr. Jones asked regarding the accessibility of houses; we’ve seen in the past  
different levels of housing, and that brings different demographics which sustain a development 
long-term.  If you have 0.25+/-ac lots, what sets this apart from a 0.25+/-acre lot in Magnolia 
subdivision.  Mr. Gambone said the majority of houses will be a minimum of 2000 sq ft.  50 lots 
will be 1800 sq ft minimum.  The larger homes will be on the larger lots, so there will be a mix of 
houses with all brick construction.  Prices will range from low $300,000 to around $400,000 for 
the 2800 sq ft houses.  Mr. Jones said that residents want to know that the new houses will 
increase their property values.  Mr. Asongayi offered clarification after the rebuttal; staff did not 
say this was proposing 522 lots but was a reference to the calculation based on the zoning district 
(R2) and the minimum lot size (9000sq ft).  He said the traffic study was presented 1 ½ weeks 
ago and is normally presented with the application.  Street improvements are not just based on a 
traffic study, but also to align with the Comp Plan. He stated the connections on the west side are 
there if that property is developed in the future.  Mr. Singh asked staff, since there is no PUD, how 
do we enforce lot sizes and house square foot sizes.  Mr. Asongayi said it’s possible Chance 
would have a table with house sizes and lot sizes.  The future land use for this is suburban 
neighborhood.  It doesn’t look feasible for 1 acre lots.  The applicant’s letter of intent said 2000-
3000 sq feet house sizes with 50 lots being 1800 feet.  If there is a PUD, it’s binding in the plan.  
Otherwise, in the final plat, it could be listed.  Mr. Singh said if there is a PUD, there is more 
accountability for fences, etc.  Otherwise, R2 zoning is just subject to existing zoning regulations.  
Mr. Asongayi said some of that could be controlled with the preliminary plat.  Mr. Jones said if the 
developer changes, the PUD would still be binding.  Mr. Singh said to change lot sizes, they would 
have to come back to the Planning Commission and Board of Aldermen.  Mr. Asongayi said when 
the final plat is recorded, if the owner wants to make smaller lots, as long as the lots stay above 
9000 sq ft, the Planning Commission must approve them.  Mr. Jones asked if there was any 
possibility at all to consider a PUD.  Mr. Gambone said that nothing changes in the procedure 
when rezoning to PUD or to R2.  If the Board of Aldermen approves the Preliminary Plat, that is 
binding.  Mr. Jones asked if there is a timeline of study to review if lots could be bigger.  Mr. 
Gambone said that the MDEQ review and permit could take 60-90 days.  He said that per 
environmental consultants, some of the streams will be protected and some won’t be.  That can 
reduce some of those blocked off areas and increase the adjacent lot sizes.  He said that they 
are trying to work with the city if the city will work with us.  There are 56 square miles in the city 
and spending tens of millions to extend water and sewer into these areas.   Not enough people 
can afford $800k-$900k homes.  Mr. Singh asked if he would be okay with providing CCR’s before 
moving to the Board of Aldermen.  Mr. Gambone said they have a standard set that will need to 
be tailored to this development.  They have no problem listing architectural requirements and 
minimum square footage requirements.  Mrs. Lewis said the city has a diverse population and 
there are different types of houses next to each other.  We don’t want apartments, but this is a 
nice section of land.  She said she lives in Maywood and is across the street from a log cabin, 
then there are some that aren’t as nice in the proximity.  It hasn’t really affected existed homes.  
$250k-$400k is the median of home prices, depending on location.  We can’t just say no more 
people can come to Olive Branch.  If complete build out is not until 2029, it won’t be as bad as we 
think.  She agree with construction traffic concern.  She said a real estate agent spoke to the 
Board of Aldermen last week about the need for additional housing. 
 
• MOTION 

Mrs. Lewis made a motion, based upon a finding that: 
• The land use character of the broader area of the property has changed  
   from agricultural/rural to suburban residential over the years, and 
• There is a public need for the rezoning reflected in the Suburban  
   Neighborhood designation of the property on the Future Land Use Map of  
   the Comprehensive Plan 2040.  

Page 7 of 160



To approve, and recommend that the Board of Aldermen approve the rezoning of the 
subject property from A-R to R-2. 
 
Mr. Jones made the second and the motion was approved as follows:   
 
Pat Dorr    Yes       Steve Stratton    Yes        Donny Singh     Yes        Dion Jones   Yes    
Janice Lewis  Yes      Mark Long  Absent        Diane Senger    Absent 
 

 
2. Application for a Preliminary Plat for Fox Paw Creek Subdivision, submitted by Chance 

Walker, Smith-Walker LLC, on behalf of property owner Cynthia Fox, Trustee.  The request 
is to subdivide 108.0+/-acres into 262 lots and 6 Common Open Spaces.  The subject 
property has an accompanying application request to rezone from A-R, Agricultural-
Residential District, to R-2, Single-Family Residential District and is located on the west side 
of Davidson Rd, approximately 0.25 mile south of Goodman Rd.  (File # SD25-0034).  

 
• APPLICATION SUMMARY 

Chance Walker P.E., Smith-Walker Engineering, on behalf of the property owner, Cynthia 
Fox, Trustee, requests approval of a preliminary plat for Fox Paw Creek Subdivision. The 
subdivision is proposed to be developed in two phases. An associated re-zoning application 
has also been submitted.  The complete subdivision is proposed to consist of a total of 262 
residential lots with 22 ac of common open space. Phase 1 is proposed to consist of 121 
single-family lots. Phase 2 is suggested to consist of 141 single-family lots. At this time, the 
City Engineer has not yet reviewed the traffic study and made other necessary considerations 
to determine the scope of improvements necessary on Davidson Rd to service the proposed 
development. The Traffic Impact Study was submitted late, and there has not been sufficient 
time for review to provide appropriate assessment for an informed Planning Commission 
recommendation.  The applicant’s representative has also stated the delineation of the 
stream buffers is pending by the US Corp of Engineers. 
 

• STAFF PRESENTATION 
  Kevin Norman, Senior Planner, presented the staff report, which is included herein 
by reference (File # SD25-0034).   

 
• PLANNING COMMISSION INQUIRY AND STAFF RESPONSE 

Mr. Stratton asked if they could approve with conditions before Board of 
Aldermen submittal or do we just table today?  Mr. Asongayi said if you table now, you’ll 
still be able to add conditions on December 9, before it moves to Board of Aldermen.  
Mr. Stratton said if the only hindrance is the traffic study, can we hear the plat 
presentation, subject to traffic study being reviewed before it moves to Board of 
Aldermen?  Mr. Jones asked if they can add conditions to be met before final plat 
application?  Mr. Asongayi said the preliminary plat approval allows infrastructure to be 
approved by the City Engineer and construction complete before Final Plat submittal.  
The traffic study review will include a recommendation to the Planning Commission for 
approval.  Mr. Dorr asked if the Preliminary Plat can be approved subject to traffic study 
being done.     Mr. Asongayi stated that if you table now, this will still be heard before the 
Board of Aldermen’s hearing on December 16th.  The next planning commission 
meeting is December 9.  There can still be a recommendation made on December 9 and 
move to the Board of Aldermen on December 16.  The traffic study delay is not because 
the city sat on it, but because it was submitted late.   

 

Page 8 of 160



• PUBLIC MEETING 
Mr. Dorr asked if anyone was present to speak about the application. 
 
o Proponents: 

▪ Jason Gambone, Garden Street Communities, 4749 W Petite Loop, 
Olive Branch, MS – he is confident that they can meet the 
recommendation by the City Engineer.  That will be part of the 
preliminary plat approval.   

o Opponents:  
▪ None 

 
• PLANNING COMMISISON DISCUSSION  

  None 
 
• MOTION 

Mr. Stratton made a motion to table give Staff adequate time to review all information 
pertaining to this application. 
 
Mr. Singh made the second and the motion to table was approved as follows:   
 
Pat Dorr    Yes       Steve Stratton    Yes        Donny Singh     Yes        Dion Jones   Yes    
Janice Lewis  Yes      Mark Long  Absent        Diane Senger    Absent 
 
 
Mr. Dorr announced New Business Item # 3 and noted there was a motion to table the item 
until December 9, 2025. 

 
3. Application for a Zoning Map Amendment, submitted by Bob Farley, Farley Surveying, on 

behalf of Vish Prasad, Vants Realty LLC, property owner. The request is to rezone 2.06+/-
acres from M-2, Heavy Industrial District, to C-2, Highway Commercial District.  The subject 
property is at the northeast corner of Hacks Cross Rd and Airport Rd, known as 8274 Hacks 
Cross Rd. (File# ZP25-0012). (Applicant requests table to December 9, 2025).  

 
• MOTION 

Mr. Jones made a motion to table the item until December 9, 2025.  Mrs. Lewis made the 
second and the motion to table the item was approved as follows:  
 
Pat Dorr    Yes       Steve Stratton    Yes        Donny Singh     Yes        Dion Jones   Yes    
Janice Lewis  Yes      Mark Long  Absent        Diane Senger    Absent 
 
 
Mr. Dorr announced New Business Item # 4 and noted there was a motion to table the item 
until December 9, 2025. 
  

4. Application for a Final Plat for Prasad Rheumotolgy Subdivision, submitted by Bob Farley, 
Farley Surveying, on behalf of Vish Prasad, Vants Realty LLC, property owner. The request 
is to subdivide 2.06+/-acres into a single lot.  The subject property is at the northeast corner 
of Hacks Cross Rd and Airport Rd, known as 8274 Hacks Cross Rd. (File# SD25-0031). 
(Applicant requests table to December 9, 2025).   

 

Page 9 of 160



 
 

• MOTION 
Mr. Jones made a motion to table the item until December 9, 2025.  Mr. Singh made the second 
and the motion to table the item was approved as follows:  

 
Pat Dorr    Yes       Steve Stratton    Yes        Donny Singh     Yes        Dion Jones   Yes    
Janice Lewis  Yes      Mark Long  Yes        Diane Senger    Yes 
 
 

5. Application for a Final Plat for Lot 2 Fox Creek Commercial Subdivision, submitted by Ben 
Smith, Smith-Walker LLC, on behalf of property owner Fox Creek Investment LLC.  The 
request is to create a single lot of 1.36+/-acres.  The subject property is zoned PUD, Planned 
Unit Development, and is located just west of the northwest corner of Hwy 302 and Fox Creek 
Dr. (File # SD25-0033). 
 

• APPLICATION SUMMARY 
Ben Smith, Smith-Walker, LLC, on behalf of the property owner, Fox Creek 

Investment, LLC, requests approval of the Final Plat for Lot 2 Fox Creek Commercial 
Subdivision. The final plat creating Lot 1 was recorded on June 30, 2023. The proposed lot 
2 would be 1.36ac. Public utilities such as water, sewer and gas lines are available in the 
vicinity of the property to service the commercial lot. Access to the lot from Goodman Rd 
(Hwy 302) would be through an existing 35ft shared access easement on Lot 1. The 
suggested plat meets all requirements of the Fox Creek Planned Unit Development as 
applicable to the proposed lot area (Neighborhood Commercial Sub-District) and the 
Subdivision Regulations of the City of Olive Branch. Staff recommends approval subject to 
various conditions.  

 
• STAFF PRESENTATION 

  Venard Asongayi, CFP, AICP, DPA, Director, presented the staff report, which is 
included herein by reference (File # SD25-0033).   

 
• PLANNING COMMISSION INQUIRY AND STAFF RESPONSE 

None 
 

• PUBLIC MEETING 
Mr. Dorr asked if anyone was present to speak about the application. 
 
o Proponents: 

▪ Chance Walker, Smith-Walker Engineering, 8180 Airways Blvd, 
Southaven, MS- he had nothing to add to the report. 

 
o Opponents:  

▪ None 
 

• PLANNING COMMISISON DISCUSSION  
 None 
 
 
 

Page 10 of 160



• MOTION 
Mr. Singh made a motion to approve the “Final Plat Lot 2 Fox Creek Commercial 
Subdivision” subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Lot improvements shall be the responsibility of the developer and not the City of 
Olive Branch. 

2. Future development on the lot shall comply with all requirements of the City’s 
various land development regulations. 

3. Unless otherwise specified, all utilities and services (electric, telephone, cable, 
etc.) shall be installed underground. The water service lines should be installed 
with tracing wire at the top. 

4. Before recording this plat, the draft Declaration of Covenants, Conditions & 
Restrictions for the Property Owners Association, which shall include provisions 
for the management and/or maintenance of all Common Open Space areas, shall 
be submitted to Planning staff for review to ensure consistency with the 
applicable project text and these approval conditions.  

5. Minor edits are applicable to the final plat as may be required by City regulations 
and deemed necessary by City staff. 

 
Mr. Stratton made the second and the motion was approved as follows:   
 
Pat Dorr    Yes       Steve Stratton    Yes        Donny Singh     Yes        Dion Jones   Yes    
Janice Lewis  Yes      Mark Long  Absent        Diane Senger    Absent 
 

6. Application for the Replat of Lots 29 and 30 of Pleasant Hill Estates East, Section A 
Subdivision, submitted by Latonya Reed, property owner. The subject property is zoned A-
R, Agricultural-Residential District and is located on the south side of Spring Creek Dr, 
between Homestead Lane and Redwood Lane, known as 6167 & 6161 Spring Creek Dr. 
(File # SD25-0035). 

 
• APPLICATION SUMMARY 

 Latonya Reed, the owner of existing Lots 29 and 30 of the Pleasant Hill Estates – East, 
Section A Subdivision, seeks to replat these lots by moving the lot line between them. The current 
interior lot line bifurcates the existing house at 6167 Spring Creek Dr. The replat, which would 
formally redraw the lot line and create new, legally recorded parcels within the existing subdivision 
would cure this problem.  Gas and water lines are available in the vicinity of the lots – along Spring 
Creek Dr. The parcels are in the 2021 Annexation Area for which the City has a plan for the extension 
of public sewer lines in the area.  Access to the lots would be through Spring Creek Dr., which is a 
public street. Both lots are zoned A-R, Agricultural Residential, which requires that lots be at least 
1ac large. The plat meets requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision Regulations of the 
City of Olive Branch.  Staff recommends approval subject to various conditions. 

 
• STAFF PRESENTATION 

  Venard Asongayi, CFP, AICP, DPA, Director, presented the staff report, which is 
included herein by reference (File # SD25-0035). 

 
• PLANNING COMMISSION INQUIRY AND STAFF RESPONSE 

None 
 
 

Page 11 of 160



• PUBLIC MEETING 
Mr. Dorr asked if anyone was present to speak about the application. 
 
o Proponents: 

▪ Latonya Reed, 6167 Spring Creek Dr, Olive Branch, MS – she had 
nothing to add 

 
o Opponents:  

▪ None 
 

• PLANNING COMMISISON DISCUSSION  
 None 
 
• MOTION 

Mr. Jones made a motion to approve the “Replat of Lots 29 and 30, Pleasant Hill Estates 
– East, Section A” Subdivision, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Change the name of the plat to “Replat of Lots 29 and 30, Pleasant Hill 
Estates – East, Section A.” 

2. Lot improvements shall be the responsibility of the developer and not the 
City of Olive Branch. 

3. Future development on the lot shall comply with all requirements of the 
City’s various land development regulations. The building setbacks, 
however, shall be as shown on the subdivision plat. 

4. Unless otherwise specified, all utilities and services (electric, telephone, 
cable, etc.) shall be installed underground. The water service lines shall be 
installed with tracing wire at the top. 

5. Any new driveway on any of the lots shall be paved in its entirety. 
6. Minor edits are applicable to the final plat as may be required by City 

regulations and deemed necessary by City staff. 
 

Mr. Singh made the second and the motion was approved as follows:  
 
Pat Dorr    Yes       Steve Stratton    Yes        Donny Singh     Yes        Dion Jones   Yes    
Janice Lewis  Yes      Mark Long  Absent        Diane Senger    Absent 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Jones made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:11 pm.   Mrs. Lewis made the second 
and the motion was approved as follows:  
 

Pat Dorr    Yes       Steve Stratton    Yes        Donny Singh     Yes        Dion Jones   Yes    
Janice Lewis  Yes      Mark Long  Absent        Diane Senger    Absent 
 

Page 12 of 160



 
Page 1  

 

AGENDA NO.: Old Business No. 1    (File #SD25-0034)                       MEETING DATE: 12/9/25  
    
 

 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Chance Walker P.E., Smith-Walker 
Engineering, on behalf of the property 
owner, Cynthia Fox, Trustee, requests 
approval of a preliminary plat for Fox 
Paw Creek Subdivision. The subdivision 
is proposed to be developed in two 
phases. An associated re-zoning 
application has also been submitted (File 
# ZP25-0013). 
 
The complete subdivision is proposed to 
consist of a total of 262 detached single-
family residential lots with 22 ac of 
common open space. Phase 1 is proposed 
to consist of 121 lots. Phase 2 is proposed 
to consist of 141 lots. The City of Olive 
Branch Department of Engineering has 
reviewed the preliminary plat and the 
submitted traffic impact study in 
conjunction with the Comprehensive Plan 
2040, and made recommendations 
regarding the scope of necessary 
improvements on Davidson Rd. The 
delineation of stream buffers is pending 
by the US Corp of Engineers. If the 
property were re-zoned to R-2, the plat 
would meet zoning and subdivision  
regulation requirements; thus, may be  
approvable subject to various conditions.  

CAPTION / SUBJECT:  Application for a Preliminary Plat for Fox Paw 
Creek Subdivision, submitted by Chance Walker, Smith-Walker LLC, on 
behalf of property owner Cynthia Fox, Trustee.  The request is to 
subdivide 108.0+/-acres into 262 lots and 6 Common Open Spaces.  The 
subject property has an accompanying application request to rezone from 
A-R, Agricultural-Residential District, to R-2, Single-Family Residential 
District and is located on the west side of Davidson Rd, approximately 
0.25 mile south of Goodman Rd.  (File # SD25-0034). 
 
 
 

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBIT: 
1) Preliminary Plat  
2) Landscape and Site 

Furnishing Plan 
3) Trail and Fence Plan 
4) Engineering Dept. memo 
5) Utility Map 
6) Proposed Davidson Rd 

improvements 
7) House Models 
 
 

N 

Figure 1: Site Location and Preliminary Layout Exhibit  

D
av

id
so

n 
R

d 
Timber Oaks Dr 

D
av

id
so

n 
R

d 

Page 13 of 160



 
Page 2  

 

1. BACKGROUND: 
  

The current Fox Paw Creek Subdivision preliminary plat application proposes to subdivide the ±108 
ac tract into 262 lots to be developed in two phases. Phase 1 is proposed to consist of 121 residential 
lots with open space and a buffer along Davidson Rd. Phase 2 is proposed to consist of 141 
residential lots with stream buffer/common open space areas. 

 

 
 
 
 Off-site improvements will include improvements to Davidson Rd north of the site. 

Main features of the development will be a walking trail with a landscape buffer alongside Davidson 
Rd. The trail will also meander around a reshaped pond with a pavilion. Traffic calming devices are 
proposed in Phase 2. 
 
The applicant has submitted several floor plans of homes with different square footages.  

 
The homes that are proposed on the 262 total lots:  
• 1800 – 1999 heated sq. ft.:  19% of lots (50 lot cap) → 50 lots 
• 2000 – 2299 heated sq. ft.: 35% of lots → ±92 lots 
• 2300 – 2599 heated sq. ft.: 35% of lots → ±92 lots 
• 2600+ heated sq. ft.: 10% of lots → ±26 lots 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N 

Phase 2 Area 
 

Phase 1 Area 
 

Figure 2: Preliminary Layout Exhibit Davidson Rd Davidson Rd 

Page 14 of 160



 
Page 3  

 

2. ANALYSIS: 
 

2.1. Zoning 
 
The subject property is a ±108 ac tract that is presently zoned AR, Agricultural Residential. An 
application for rezoning to R-2, Single-Family Residential was also submitted and recommended for 
approval by the Planning Commission on November 12, 2025 and will be considered for approval 
by the Board of Aldermen on December 16, 2025. Permitted uses in the R-2, Single-Family 
Residential District are primarily single-family residential houses, churches, schools, parks, and 
public facilities. 
  
If rezoned to R-2, bulk requirements shall be as stipulated for the R-2, Single-Family Residential 
zoning district. As submitted, the plat meets the minimum 9,000 sf lot area and minimum 70 ft lot 
width at the building setback line for the R-2 District.  

 
 

2.2. Lots 
The applicant has proposed two phases of development: 
 
Phase 1 

• Phase 1 is proposed to consist of 121 residential lots, which would be greater than or equal 
to 9,000 sf in size.  

• Four open spaces totaling 7.83 ac are proposed: 
 A ±2.55 ac portion of landscape buffer/common open space is proposed along 

Davidson Rd. with a walking trail,  
 A ±2 ac detention/open space would be located in the southeast corner of the tract, 

and 
 Two ±3.28 ac detention/common open spaces. One space contains an existing pond 

that is proposed to be re-shaped for detention. This space is proposed to have a 
walking trail, pavilion, and mailbox parking for residents’ use.  

 
Phase 2 

• Phase 2 is proposed to consist of 141 residential lots, which would be greater than or equal 
to 9,000 sf in size.  

• Common Open Spaces in Phase 2 are proposed from existing stream buffers. The applicant 
has stated that 20.78 ac will comprise the open spaces in Phase 2. The applicant is awaiting 
final approval of USACE delineation of the stream buffer areas to determine these areas final 
acreage, which will affect lot sizes. 

 
2.4. Subdivision Infrastructure 
  

2.4.1. Utilities 
 
The developer shall construct new public water and sewer lines and extend all other utilities as 
necessary to service proposed lots. Full sets of construction plans shall be submitted to the City 
Engineer for review and approval.  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 15 of 160



 
Page 4  

 

Existing utilities in the vicinity of the proposed subdivision include an 8-inch gravity sewer line 
within the Davidson Rd right-of-way and a 6-inch water main on the east side of the Davidson Rd 
right-of-way. 
 
There are no gas utility lines in the vicinity of the proposed subdivision. 

 
2.4.2. Transportation 
 
According to the Comprehensive Plan 2040, the portion of Davidson Rd between Goodman Rd and 
Timber Oaks Dr is classified as a Major Collector. It currently has a right-of-way of 90 ft. The 
existing pavement width, however, is approximately ±20 ft. The “Long Range Vision Plan” for the 
Davidson Rd segment from Timber Oaks Dr to Goodman Rd is for it to be a 2-lane road, potential 
for developable parcels to the south of the subject property notwithstanding.  

 
 
 
 
The City of Olive Branch Department of Engineering has reviewed the preliminary plat and the 
submitted traffic impact study in conjunction with the Comprehensive Plan 2040, and makes the 
following recommendations regarding Davidson Rd: 
 
1. The developer should widen the west side of Davidson Road along the entire eastern street 

frontage of the parcel to be developed to accommodate a road width of 24-30 feet.  In this regard, 
the road should be widened such that each lane from centerline to edge of pavement is at least 
12 feet wide. 

 

Timber Oaks Dr 

Page 16 of 160



 
Page 5  

 

2. The developer should construct curbs, gutters, and sidewalks (minimum 5 feet wide) along the 
entire western side of the Davidson Rd street frontage of the property. Alternatively, a rural open 
swale section is allowed with a trail segment along it. At final plat, this trail segment along 
Davidson Rd should be made available for general public use as a sidewalk would have been. 
 

3. To effectively handle the daily traffic increase impact that the development would generate or 
cause from Timber Oak Dr to Goodman Rd; the Planning Commission could recommend, and 
the Board of Alderman could require that the 32-foot-wide urban section of Davidson Road (with 
sidewalks) south of Hwy 302 be extended south within the existing right-of-way.  This will also 
allow for pedestrian access to the commercial areas along Hwy 302. 

 
The applicant proposes various improvements to Davidson Rd as shown below:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17 of 160



 
Page 6  

 

MATCH LINE 

N
 

Goodman Rd 

Page 18 of 160



 
Page 7  

 

The interior streets within the subdivision are proposed to have a pavement width of 30 ft, and have 
3-inch thick asphaltic surface within a 50 ft right-of-way. These proposed streets will have curb, 
gutter, and 5 ft pedestrian sidewalks within 10 ft utility easements. 
 

 
 
2.4.3. Amenities 
 
A gazebo and walking trail with a lit fountain in the reshaped pond will be constructed in Phase 1 of 
the subdivision. The applicant states that “since the yards will be big enough for residents to add 
pools, we will not have a pool & clubhouse as an amenity”. 
 

3. NEXT STEPS:   
 
Upon recommendation by the Planning Commission, this application would move forward to the Board of 
Aldermen for a final decision. If the rezoning application (File #ZP25-0013) and the preliminary plat 
application are approved by the Board of Aldermen, the next step in the development process would be for 
the applicant to file for construction plan approval. 
 
4. RECOMMENDED MOTION:  
 

Staff recommends approval of the preliminary plat for Fox Paw Creek Subdivision, Phases 1 and 2 
subject to the following conditions:  

 
1. Improvements shall be the responsibility of the developer and not the responsibility of the City of 

Olive Branch. 
 

2. The developer shall submit construction plans to the City Engineer for approval widening the west 
side of Davidson Road along the entire eastern street frontage of the parcel to be developed to 
accommodate a road width of 24-30 feet. The Davidson Rd improvements must be constructed 
before recordation of the final plat of Phase 1, unless a letter of credit of sufficient amount, plus 25% 
contingency, is provided to the City to cover any uncompleted public improvements.  
 

3. The heated square footages of proposed homes and the overall ratio (percentagewise) of lots shall 
be placed upon the preliminary plat. 

Page 19 of 160



 
Page 8  

 

 
4. The portion of the walking trail lying along the Davidson Rd right-of-way and within the area of 

Phase 1 of this subdivision must be constructed before recordation of the final plat of Phase 1. The 
final plat should provide for this trail segment to be used by the public, though maintained by the 
Fox Paw Creek Homeowners Association until such time that the City may assume at its discretion, 
ownership and responsibility for its maintenance. 
 

5. The developer shall submit civil construction plans for grading, stormwater management, utilities, 
streetlights, road(s) construction, trail and pavilion(s), landscaping, fencing and other applicable 
recreational measures, and all other subdivision infrastructure to the City Engineer and the Director 
of Planning and Development or designee for approval.   

 
6. Upon construction plan approval, the developer shall install any and all applicable drainage pipe, 

erosion control material, water mains, sewer, fire hydrants and service, streetlights, and gravel or 
soil cement base and asphalt for access roads, recreational facilities, and subdivision signs. If the 
developer wishes to record the final plat before completion of all required public and common 
infrastructure, the following minimum improvements must have been completed: all proposed roads 
must be graded, have the appropriate gravel or soil cement base and binder, and water, sewer, and 
drainage improvements must be in place. Upon the completion of these minimum improvements, 
the developer may provide a performance guarantee in an amount set by the City Engineer to the 
City for the completion of remaining required subdivision infrastructure prior to recording the plat 
to ensure the installation of all of the improvements.  
 

7. At least 1 street tree 2½ - 3½ inch caliper at time of planting shall be planted in front of each lot 
before a house on the lot may pass final inspection. Two such trees shall be planted on corner lots, 
one on each street frontage. 

 
8. All utilities and services (electric, telephone, cable, etc.) shall be installed underground. The water 

service lines shall be installed with tracing wire at the top. 
 

9. All street medians and traffic circles (as applicable) shall be designed and constructed with 
appropriate street trees as shall be approved by the Director of Planning and Development or 
designee.  

 
10. At final plat submittal, the developer shall submit the draft Declaration of Covenants, Conditions & 

Restrictions for the Homeowners Association. These shall include provisions for the management 
of all Common Open Space areas and the minimum heated area of houses.  
 

11. The developer and/or property owner shall secure completed delineation of the stream buffers by the 
United States Army Corp of Engineers (USACE) before approval of the final plat of this Phase 1, 
and shall show the designated floodplain limits, floodway boundary, and Base Flood Elevation 
(BFE) of all lots on the final subdivision plat. 
 

12. Should MDEQ determine that the western stream(s) will not require 60 ft. wide protection buffers, 
an additional 8 lots are authorized to be added to Phase 2, increasing the total lots from 262 to 270. 

 
 
 
 

Page 20 of 160



Page 21 of 160



LS BUFFER/PRESERVE EXISTING/COS

DAVIDSON ROAD

LS BUFFER/PRESERVE EXISTING/COS

57

1

2

3

6

122

123

124

126

127

128

130

131

132
133134135136

137

157

155

154

156

139
140

141

152 151 150 149 148

142

143

144

145

259

147 146

258257256255254253252246 247 248 249 251

200 199

214215216217218

187186 190189188

170171172173174181

182183

184

220

221

229

228

227

230 231 232

63

79

80

81

82

83

848589

90

91

115

114

113

116117118119120

121

112111110109

108

107 105 104 103 102 101

96

95

949392

4

35

36

37

38

394041
42

43

44

343332
31

30

29

19

18
17

16 15 14 13 12 11

192 193

D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

/C
O

S
A-

30
0 

(3
.2

8 
AC

)

DETENTION/
COS

E-304 (0.81 AC)

EX. POND
RESHAPE/DETAIN/COS

B-301 (3.64 AC)

7

8

9

10

129

125

21

175176177

222

223

224

868788

56 55 54 53 52 51 49
48

596061

64

65

66

67

178

225

100 50

62

5

78
77 76 75 74 73

250

198

194

28

27
26

25
24

23

22
20

203204205206208
209

210

211
212

213

233 234

235
236

237

138

97

69
68

106

197

191

201

58

202

207

243

242

241

238

239

240

196 195

179180

226

99 98

72 71

158159160162 161163165 164166167169 168

70

45

46

47

153

219

260 261

262

185

244 245

STREAM BUFFER/COS
D-303 (10.52 AC)

PH2 - 141 LOTS

PH1 - 121 LOTS
STREAM BUFFER/COS
F-305 (2.62 AC)

STREAM BUFFER/COS
G-306 (6.36 AC)

STREAM BUFFER/COS
H-307 (1.25 AC)

DEVELOPER: Garden Street Communities Southeast, LLC
ENGINEER: SMITH WALKER ENGINEERING AND SURVEYING, LLC

8180 AIRWAYS BOULEVARD , SUITE B
SOUTHAVEN,  MISSISSIPPI 38671
PH# (662) 393-3346    FAX (662) 536-6183S SMITH WALKER

ENGINEERING & SURVEYING

SITE DEVELOPMENT DATA LOT SIZE DATA

Page 22 of 160

AutoCAD SHX Text
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
R40'

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
FOX PAW CREEK SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
WEST OF DAVIDSON ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
100.

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
±108 Gross Acres262 Lots Illustrated @ 2.43 du/ac

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Common Open Space/  US Corp Stream Buffer (Pending Delineation)

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
±22 Acres Common Open Space (20%)50' Public Right-of-Way (12,446 LF Internal)

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
TYPICAL LOT:  MINIMUM 70' X 130'  (55'W X 70'D BLDG AREA)

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
BUILDING SETBACKS: FRONT: 35'  35'  SIDE:    5' MIN SUM 15' REAR:   25'

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
> = 9,000 S.F. LOTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
262 Lots

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
±20%

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
6-30 CURB  AND GUTTER (BOTH SIDES)

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
10' UTILITY ESM'T

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
10' UTILITY ESM'T

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
30' ROADWAY (F.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
50' RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
TYPICAL STREET SECTION 50' RIGHT OF WAY 30' ROADWAY SECTION N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
PGL

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
3" ASPHALT 1  " SURFACE COURSE 12" SURFACE COURSE 1  " BINDER COURSE 12" BINDER COURSE (PLACED AT TIME OF PAVING)

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
8" COMPACTED GRAVEL OR 6" SOIL CEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
5' SIDEWALK* (EACH SIDE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
3:1 MAX. SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
3:1 MAX. SLOPE



DAVIDSON ROAD

250

1

2

3

6

190

248

247

246

245

244

243

242

238

237

236

212

213

214

211210209

208
207

206

215216

217

218

219

220
222 223 224 225 226

231

232

233

234

235

4

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

170

D
E

T
E

N
T

I
O

N
/
C

O
S

241240239

251 252 253 254 255
256

258

259

186187188

191

192

193

194

227

257

189

5

169

168

167

166

165

230221

249

228 229

260

261

262

DAVIDSON ROAD

250

1

2

3

6

190

248

247

246

245

244

243

242

238

237

236

212

213

214

211210209

208
207

206

215216

217

218

219

220
222 223 224 225 226

231

232

233

234

235

4

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

D
E

T
E

N
T

I
O

N
/
C

O
S

241240239

251 252 253 254 255
256

258

259

186187188

191

192

193

227

257

189

5

169

168

167

166

230221

249

228 229

260

261

262

261

262

261

262

)O; 3A: CREE. S8%DIVISION

O/IVE %RANC+� 0ISSISSI33I

OCTO%ER 29� 2025

/ANDSCA3E ARC+ITECT8RE

-:V DHVLJQ

3/ANNIN* 	 IRRI*ATION DESI*N

�901� 679�3656 -:VDHVLJQ#FRPFDVW�QHW

/ANDSCA3E 	 SITE )8RNIS+IN*S

Page 23 of 160

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
FOX PAW PAVILIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
PAVILION

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
MAIL KIOSK

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
CANOPY TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
SHRUBS

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
FLOWERING TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
PAVILION "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
PAVILION "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
PAVILION "C"

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
PAVILION

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
MAIL KIOSK

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
EVERGREEN TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
CANOPY TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
FLOWERING TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
ENTRY SIGNAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
TRAIL CROSSING

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
ENTRY SIGNAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
SHRUB BED W/

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
UPLIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
SHRUB BED W/

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
UPLIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
FOX PAW SCHEMATIC "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
FOX PAW SCHEMATIC "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
5' TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
FLOWERING TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
CANOPY TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
SCHEMATIC "A" ENLARGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
SCHEMATIC "B" ENLARGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
TRAIL CROSSING

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
CROSS BUCK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
TRAIL CROSSING

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
CROSS BUCK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
5' TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
5' TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
FUTURE 5' TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
MAINTAINED TREE BUFFER - SPECIMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
TREES 8" CALIPER AND LARGER TO BE  

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
LOCATED AND PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
ASSUMED ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
POSSIBLE FUTURE TRAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
ROUTE DEPENDING ON STREAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
(ACTUAL WIDTH UNKNOWN)

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
MAINTAINED TREE BUFFER - SPECIMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
TREES 8" CALIPER AND LARGER TO BE  

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
LOCATED AND PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
ASSUMED ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
(ACTUAL WIDTH UNKNOWN)

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
POSSIBLE FUTURE TRAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
ROUTE DEPENDING ON STREAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
EVERGREEN TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
NOTE: TREES AND TRAIL ARE SHOWN FOR GRAPHIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
PURPOSES ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
WHEN TREE SURVEY HAS BEEN CREATED ACTUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
PROPOSED TREES AND TRAIL SHALL BE RELOCATED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
3' GRASS STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
SHRUB BED W/

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
UPLIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
POSSIBLE FUTURE TRAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
ROUTE DEPENDING ON STREAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 



DAVIDSON ROAD

250

1

2

3

6

190

248

247

246

245

244

243

242

238

237

236

212

213

214

211210209

208
207

206

215216

217

218

219

220
222 223 224 225 226

231

232

233

234

235

4

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

D
E

T
E

N
T

I
O

N
/
C

O
S

241240239

251 252 253 254 255
256

258

259

186187188

191

192

193

227

257

189

5

169

168

167

166

230221

249

228 229

260

261

262

DAVIDSON ROAD

250

1

2

3

190

248

247

246

245

244

243

242

238

237

236

212

213

214

211210209

208
207

206

215216

217

218

219

220
222 223 224 225 226

231

232

233

234

235

4

179

183

184

185

D
E

T
E

N
T

I
O

N
/
C

O
S

241240239

251 252 253 254 255
256

258

259

186187188

191

192

227

257

189

5

230221

249

228 229

260

261

262

)O; 3A: CREE. S8%DIVISION

O/IVE %RANC+� 0ISSISSI33I

OCTO%ER 29� 2025

/ANDSCA3E ARC+ITECT8RE

-:V DHVLJQ

3/ANNIN* 	 IRRI*ATION DESI*N

�901� 679�3656 -:VDHVLJQ#FRPFDVW�QHW

TRAI/ AND )ENCE

Page 24 of 160

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
RURAL ROAD - DAVIDSON ROAD W/CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
22' DAVIDSON RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
35' CROSS  BUCK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
CROSS BUCK FENCE @ ENTRY & LAKE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
90'+- R.O.W. DAVIDSON RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
MAINTAINED & PROTECTED VEGETATIVE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
3' GRASS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
90'+- R.O.W. DAVIDSON RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
RURAL ROAD - DAVIDSON ROAD W/CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
RURAL ROAD - DAVIDSON ROAD W/O CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
22' DAVIDSON RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
25-30'

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
35'

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
52'

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
CROSS BUCK FENCE @ ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
5' MEANDERING  TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
TRAIL MEANDERS BETWEEN 10 & 18' FROM EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
MAINTAINED & PROTECTED VEGETATIVE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
90'+- R.O.W. DAVIDSON RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
FOX PAW ENTRY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
5' CROSSWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
14'

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
CROSS BUCK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
PAVILION

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
MAIL KIOSK

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
5' TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
CROSS BUCK FENCE WITH MASONRY "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
FOX PAW SCHEMATIC "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
FOX PAW SCHEMATIC "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
CROSS BUCK FENCE WITH MASONRY "C"

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
CROSS BUCK FENCE WITH MASONRY "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
CROSS BUCK FENCE WITH MASONRY "D"

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
CROSS BUCK FENCE WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
CROSS BUCK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
MAIL KIOSK

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
5' TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
FUTURE 5' TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
PAVILION

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
ENTRY FEATURE W/

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
SIDEWALK CROSSING

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
SIDEWALK CROSSING

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
SIDEWALK CROSSING

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
SIDEWALK CROSSING

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
3' GRASS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
FUTURE 5' TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
(BETWEEN LAKE & 

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
DAVIDSON RD)

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
MAINTAINED TREE BUFFER - SPECIMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
TREES 8" CALIPER AND LARGER TO BE  

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
LOCATED AND PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
MAINTAINED TREE BUFFER - SPECIMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
TREES 8" CALIPER AND LARGER TO BE  

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
LOCATED AND PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
CROSS BUCK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
MAINTAINED TREE BUFFER - SPECIMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
TREES 8" CALIPER AND LARGER TO BE  

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
LOCATED AND PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
VIEWS TO LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
MEANDERING 5' TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
MEANDERING 5' TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
TRAIL MEANDERS BETWEEN 10' & 18' 

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
FROM EDGE OF DAVIDSON RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
ENTRY FEATURE W/

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
MAINTAINED TREE BUFFER - SPECIMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
TREES 8" CALIPER AND LARGER TO BE  

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
LOCATED AND PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
ASSUMED ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
35'-40' EX. TREE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
ENTRY FEATURE W/

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
ENTRY FEATURE W/

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
35'-40' EX. TREE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
POSSIBLE FUTURE TRAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
ROUTE DEPENDING ON STREAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
POSSIBLE FUTURE TRAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
ROUTE DEPENDING ON STREAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
(ACTUAL WIDTH UNKNOWN)

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
ASSUMED ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
(ACTUAL WIDTH UNKNOWN)

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
3' GRASS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
SCHEMATIC STREET CROSS-SECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
EDGE OF PAVEMENT



 

 

                                     MEMO            
 

              
ENGINEERING D EPARTMENT                                               CIT Y OF OLIVE BRANCH, MS 

DATE: November 20, 2025 

TO: Asongayi Venard   
FROM: Andy D. Swims, PE 
RE:            Fox Paw Creek Proposed Subdivision                                                               

 

Fox Paw Creek proposed subdivision is currently showing connection to Davidson Road with two points of entry.  

Davidson Road is a half section road and classified as a major collector road.  Roads right-of -way on half-section roads 

are generally acceptable at 80 feet.  South of 302 where the subdivision is located, the right-of -way varies.  Davidson 

Road street section is +/- feet wide asphalt with a curb and gutter for the first 600 feet.  It then narrows down to 18-20 feet 

south of this point.  

 

If Davidson Road were to be extended to the south from its current dead end, a substantially (and costly) box culvert or 

bridge would be necessary to cross Nolehoe Creek.  While this has not in recent history been on any capital improvement 

plan for the City as an imminent project, the benefits could be substantial if Davidson connected to Nail Road, which in 

turn could connect pleasant Hill Road to Craft Road.   A significant drop in traffic congestion on 302 would likely occur. 

The adjoining property to the south has developable area.   Its development may include a road connection to Davidson 

Road.  Such connections would include improvements to the Davidson Road Street frontage of the property.  The traffic 

study shows Fox Paw Creek Subdivision will increase the average daily traffic on Davidson Road with an additional 2800 

vehicles.  The current traffic is fairly low.  According to the study, the traffic will increase 4-5 times current conditions.  

The Level of Service is currently C, and 2029 projections are for the Level of Service to drop to a D.  I concur with the 

study that this is acceptable for a two-lane major collector road in urban conditions.  

 

The Study Recommendations simply state that the increased Level of Service is acceptable and appears to suggest the 

intent is to keep the existing land geometry (of lane widths).  However, improvements to Davidson Road should meet 

minimum standards of lane widths the City has historically required for major collectors.  Additionally, it should reflect 

impacts the development will have and future considerations of growth or road extensions.  The existing road widths of 

18-20 feet are substandard, and Curb & Gutter and Sidewalks are typically required.   If no considerations were given to 

future extension of Davidson Road Southward, reductions in the required road widening could be considered but should 

be no less than 24 feet total pavement width.  

 

Page 25 of 160



  

With the above consideration, I make the following recommendations for the interest of the public: 

 

1. The property owner should dedicate sufficient right-of-way (ROW) such that the ROW along the entire east line 

of the development would be a minimum 80 feet at the final plat recordation.  

 

2. The developer should widen the west side of Davidson Road along the entire eastern street frontage of the parcel 

to be developed to accommodate a road width of 24-30 feet.  In this regard, the road should be widened such that 

each lane for centerline to edge of pavement is at least 12 feet wide. 

 

3. The developer should construct curbs, gutters, and sidewalks (minimum 5 feet wide) along the entire western side 

of Davidson Road Street frontage of the property.  

 

4. To effectively handle the daily traffic increase impact that the development would generate or cause from Timber 

Oak Dr to Goodman Rd.: the planning Commission could recommend, and the Board of Alderman could require 

that the 32-foot-wide urban section of Davidson Road (with sidewalks) south of Hwy 302 be extended south 

within the existing right-of-way.  This will also allow for pedestrian access to the commercial areas along HWY 

302 

 

Page 26 of 160



Existing Utility Map

Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO,
NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

GAS MAIN LINES

Not Field Verified

SEWER GRAVITY MAIN

NOT FIELD VERIFIED

SEWER FORCE MAIN

WATER MAINS

NOT FIELD VERIFIED

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

12/2/2025, 9:48:21 AM

0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:9,028

City of Olive Branch
Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULARPage 27 of 160

Subject Property



7
5

0
’ 

ta
p

e
r 

p
av

e
m

e
n

t,
 w

id
e

n
in

g 
fr

o
m

 6
’ t

o
 0

’ (
fr

o
m

 n
o

rt
h

 t
o

 s
o

u
th

 a
lo

n
g 

e
as

t 
si

d
e

)

4
3

5
’ 

cu
rb

, 
gu

tt
e

r 
&

 s
id

ew
al

k 
(e

as
t 

si
d

e
)

4
5

0
’ 

ta
p

e
r 

p
av

e
m

e
n

t,
 w

id
e

n
in

g 
fr

o
m

 0
’ t

o
 1

0
’ (

fr
o

m
 n

o
rt

h
 t

o
 s

o
u

th
 a

lo
n

g 
w

e
st

 s
id

e
) 

to
 n

o
rt

h
 e

n
tr

an
ce

, w
id

e
n

 D
av

id
so

n
 R

d
. 

4
’ a

lo
n

g 
re

m
ai

n
d

e
r 

o
f 

fr
o

n
ta

ge
)

St
ar

t 
ru

ra
l t

ra
il 

@
 c

h
u

rc
h

 e
n

tr
an

ce
, c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 s
o

u
th

 a
cr

o
ss

 r
e

m
ai

n
d

e
r 

o
f 

fr
o

n
ta

ge

C
ro

ss
w

al
k 

@
 N

ew
 J

e
re

m
ia

h
 e

n
tr

an
ce

Page 28 of 160



LS BUFFER/PRESERVE EXISTING/COS

DAVIDSON ROAD

LS BUFFER/PRESERVE EXISTING/COS

57

1

2

3

6

63

79

80

81

82

83

848589

90

91

115

114

113

116117118119120

121

112111110109

108

107 105 104 103 102 101

96

95

949392

4

35

36

37

38

394041
42

43

44

343332
31

30

29

E-304 (0.81 AC)

EX. POND
RESHAPE/DETAIN/COS

B-301 (3.64 AC)

7

868788

56 55 54 53 52 51 49
48

596061

64

65

66

67

100 50

62

5

78
77 76 75 74 73

28

27
26

25
24

23

97

69
68

106
5899 98

72 71 70

45

46

47 WEST
TAPER

TI
M

BE
R

 O
AK

S

CURB AND GUTTER
WITH SIDEWALK

EAST
TAPER

24'
ADD ADDITIONAL PAV'T @ 35' FROM PROPERTY LINE

MATCH EXIST

PROP. CROSSWALK @ NEW
JEREMIAH ENTRANCE

24'24' 24' 30'

DEVELOPER: Garden Street Communities Southeast, LLC
ENGINEER: SMITH WALKER ENGINEERING AND SURVEYING, LLC

8180 AIRWAYS BOULEVARD , SUITE B
SOUTHAVEN,  MISSISSIPPI 38671
PH# (662) 393-3346    FAX (662) 536-6183S SMITH WALKER

ENGINEERING & SURVEYING

DAVIDSON ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

Page 29 of 160

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
R48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
FOX PAW CREEK SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
WEST OF DAVIDSON ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
100.

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
CURB  AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
1'-9'

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
0'-10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
DAVIDSON ROAD SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
WEST ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
EAST ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
EX. PAV'T

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
3:1 MAX. SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
13,388S.F. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
PAVMENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
442 L.F. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
CURB & GUTTER:

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
2,213S.F. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
SIDEWALK:



• Adams Homes is known for its one-story open floor plans & brick facades.

• “2265” expected to be popular plan in Fox Paw Creek.

• Multiple elevations with different treatments, including front porches.

Page 30 of 160



• “2010” also expected to be a favored plan in Fox Paw Creek.  

Page 31 of 160



• “2625” - Larger homes to be marketed in Fox Paw Creek

Page 32 of 160



• “2831” - Larger homes to be marketed in Fox Paw Creek

Page 33 of 160



• Up to 50 lots (19%) in Fox Paw Creek to be reserved for 

homes less than 2000 heated sq. ft. minimum:  “1930” Plan 

Page 34 of 160



 
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA NO.:  Old Business No. 2  (File # ZP25-0012)                            MEETING DATE:  12/09/25  

    
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: This application requests the rezoning of approximately 2.06 acres from M-2, 

Heavy Industrial District to C-2, Highway Commercial District. The subject property is located on the east 

side of Hacks Cross Road, north of Airport Road.   No error in the existing zoning is claimed. The 

Comprehensive Plan 2040, Future Land Use Map designates the property as Industrial Distribution. Staff 

recommends approval based on the findings that over the years, the character of development along Hacks 

Cross Rd. has evolved from agricultural to a mixture of commercial and industrial uses, and that commercial 

uses of the sort permitted in the C-2 District would serve the public need for services and commodities along 

the corridor. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CAPTION / SUBJECT:  Application for a Zoning Map Amendment, submitted 

by Bob Farley, Farley Surveying, on behalf of Vish Prasad, Vants Realty LLC, 

property owner. The request is to rezone 2.06+/-acres from M-2, Heavy Industrial 

District, to C-2, Highway Commercial District, for the purpose of establishing a 

medical clinic at this location.  The subject property is at the northeast corner of 

Hacks Cross Rd and Airport Rd, known as 8274 Hacks Cross Rd.  
 

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBITS: 
1. Aerial Map 

2.   Explanation 

Letter 

3. Future Land Use 

Map 

4. Zoning Map 

8274 Hacks Cross 

Rd. 

Page 35 of 160



 
Page 2 of 4 

 

1. BACKGROUND:   

 

1) Purpose  

Currently, the applicant intends to use the property for a medical office.  Rezoning the property to C-

2, however, will permit all uses by right in the C-2 Zoning District that the site may be suitable for, 

and at an intensity that the site can support.  Such uses include banking, retail, grocery, medical and 

other professional services, offices, hotels and restaurants just to mention a few.  Conditional uses in 

this district may also be permitted if approved by the Board of (Zoning) Adjustment. 
 

2) Area of Property  

Un-platted 2.06 ± acres.  The applicant has submitted a separate subdivision plat application for the 

parcel (see Application #SD25-0031). 

 

3) Current Land Use of Property and its Surrounding  

The property has one unoccupied structure, which according to tax records was built in 1980.  The 

building was recently used as a Cadence Bank under a conditional use permit in the M-2 Zoning 

District.   Industrial and Distribution facilities adjoin the property.  

 

4) Surrounding Zoning and Uses 

Figure 1 below shows the property and its surrounding zoning districts designations.  There are two 

(2) properties within 500 ft. from the subject property are zoned (C-2, Highway Commercial 

District) and C-3 (General Commercial District). Given the overall character of the Hack Cross Road 

corridor, where commercial uses are intermingled with primarily light industrial activities, the 

rezoning of the property to C-2, considering its surroundings, may not be regarded as spot zoning. 
 

Figure 1 Surrounding Zoning and Uses 

 

Page 36 of 160



 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

ANALYSIS:  The criteria used to evaluate a rezoning are listed below: 

1. The original zoning classification for the property was a mistake; or that,  

 

Applicant’s Submission:   The current zoning was not incorrect.  

Staff Finding:  To suggest that “the original zoning classification was a mistake” would imply that the 

property should have been zoned differently. The property has been zoned M-2 since it was annexed into 

the city in 1990. 
 

2. The character of the neighborhood has changed to such an extent to justify the proposed rezoning; 

(If the proposed zoning classification does not conform to the City’s General Development Plan, 

the applicant shall be required to offer proof with regard to what major economic, zoning, 

physical, or social changes, if any, have occurred in the vicinity of the property in question, which 

were not anticipated by the General Development Plan, and which have altered the basic 

character of the area, to make the amendment appropriate.) and that,  
 

Applicant’s Submission: The character of the neighborhood has significantly changed over the past 

decades and this request would more closely match and compliment the zoning of the properties along 

Hacks Cross Rd.  

Staff Finding: Over the years, the character of the Hacks Cross Rd. corridor from Goodman Rd. to 

Stateline Rd. has changed from vacant agricultural land to a mixture of commercial and industrial uses.  

Figure 1 reflects these changes. 

   
 Figure 1 Change in land use  

Page 37 of 160



Page 38 of 160



8274 Hacks Cross Rd.

EXHIBIT 1 AERIAL MAP

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community, Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS,

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

12/2/2025, 11:14:29 AM
0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.05 0.10.03 km

1:2,257

City of Olive Branch

Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS ORPage 39 of 160



Vants Realty, LLC
Attn: Vish Prasad, Authorized Member
4527 Whisper Spring Dr
Collierville, TN 38017
Email: emailvis@gmail.com
Phone: 585-530-0999

Date: October 9, 2025

Planning Commission
City of Olive Branch
9200 Pigeon Roost Road
Olive Branch, MS 38654

Subject: Rezoning Request for 8274 Hackscross Road from M-2
(Industrial) to C-2 (Commercial) for Medical Office Use

Dear Members of the Olive Branch Planning Commission,

On behalf of Vants Realty, LLC, I respectfully submit this request to rezone the property
located at 8274 Hackscross Road, Olive Branch, MS 38654 from M-2 (Industrial) to C-2
(Highway Commercial).

Vants Realty is the current owner of the property, which we intend to lease to Midsouth
Rheumatology, a reputable specialty medical practice currently operating in Collierville,
Tennessee (www.midsouthrheumatology.com).

The property was previously occupied by Cadence Bank under a conditional use permit in
the M-2 zoning district. While the structure was technically zoned for industrial use, its design,
parking layout, and operational footprint are more consistent with commercial or professional
office use.

Proposed Use:
Midsouth Rheumatology plans to utilize the building as a medical clinic and administrative
office. The facility will provide non-invasive outpatient care in rheumatology, serving patients
throughout North Mississippi and the greater Memphis area. Operations will be low-traffic,
appointment-based, and fully compatible with surrounding properties.

Justification for Rezoning:
1. Compatibility with Surrounding Uses: The area has transitioned from industrial to

Page 40 of 160



commercial and service-oriented uses, making C-2 zoning appropriate.
2. Public and Economic Benefit: The clinic expands access to healthcare, creates
professional jobs, and contributes positively to the tax base.
3. Minimal Infrastructure Impact: The property’s current facilities meet all needs without
further public investment.
4. Alignment with City Vision: The change supports Olive Branch’s comprehensive plan for
balanced, professional, and low-impact commercial growth.

Conclusion:
Given the property’s location, existing improvements, and proposed medical use, we believe
rezoning 8274 Hackscross Road from M-2 to C-2 is in the best interest of both the City of
Olive Branch and its residents.

We respectfully request your approval of this rezoning petition and are available to provide
any additional information as needed.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Vish Prasad
Authorized Member, Vants Realty, LLC
Phone: 585-530-0999
Email: emailvis@gmail.com

______________________________
Vish Prasad, Authorized Member

Page 41 of 160



COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR

TECHNOLOGY / EMPLOYMENT CENTER

INDUSTRIAL / DISTRIBUTION
TECHNOLOGY / EMPLOYMENT CENTER

TECHNOLOGY / EMPLOYMENT CENTER

INDUSTRIAL / DISTRIBUTION

8274 Hacks Cross Rd.

EXHIBIT 3 FUTURE LAND USE MAP

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community, Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS,

OB FUTURE LAND USE

INDUSTRIAL / DISTRIBUTION

TECHNOLOGY / EMPLOYMENT CENTER

COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR

Zoning

A

A-R

A-R OVERLAY

C-1

C-2

C-3

C-4

C-5

CM OVERLAY

ER

HISTORIC DISTRICT OVERLAY

M-1

M-2

M-3

MAIN STREET DISTRICT

O

PB

PBP

PO

PUD

PUD OVERLAY

R-1

R-10

R-12

R-12 OVERLAY

R-15

R-15 OVERLAY

R-2

R-20

R-20 OVERLAY

R-3

R-30

R-30 OVERLAY

R-4

R-40

R-40 OVERLAY

R-6

R-6 OVERLAY

R-8

R-8 OVERLAY

R-9

RM-6

RM-8

RO

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

12/2/2025, 11:19:30 AM
0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.05 0.10.03 km

1:2,257

City of Olive Branch

Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS ORPage 42 of 160



8274 Hacks Cross Rd.

EXHIBIT 4 CURRENT ZONING MAP

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community, Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS,

Zoning

A

A-R

A-R OVERLAY

C-1

C-2

C-3

C-4

C-5

CM OVERLAY

ER

HISTORIC DISTRICT OVERLAY

M-1

M-2

M-3

MAIN STREET DISTRICT

O

PB

PBP

PO

PUD

PUD OVERLAY

R-1

R-10

R-12

R-12 OVERLAY

R-15

R-15 OVERLAY

R-2

R-20

R-20 OVERLAY

R-3

R-30

R-30 OVERLAY

R-4

R-40

R-40 OVERLAY

R-6

R-6 OVERLAY

R-8

R-8 OVERLAY

R-9

RM-6

RM-8

RO

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

12/2/2025, 11:17:49 AM
0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.05 0.10.03 km

1:2,257

City of Olive Branch

Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS ORPage 43 of 160



Page 1 of 3 
 

AGENDA NO.: Old Business No.3  (File# SD25-0031)                               MEETING DATE:  12/09/25  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The applicant, Bob Farley, Farley Surveying, on behalf of Vish Prasad, Vants Realty LLC, property 

owner, requests approval of a final plat for the Prasad Rheumotolgy 1 Lot subdivision. The subject 

property is ±2.06 acres and is currently improved with a single-commercial structure and drive thru. The 

subdivision will create one lot. The plat meets the regulatory zoning and lot requirements. Any needed 

utility extension shall be the responsibility of the developer. Staff recommends approval of the final plat 

subject to multiple conditions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CAPTION / SUBJECT: Application for a Final Plat for Prasad Rheumotolgy 

Subdivision, submitted by Bob Farley, Farley Surveying, on behalf of Vish 

Prasad, Vants Realty LLC, property owner. The request is to subdivide 2.06+/-

acres into a single lot.  The subject property is at the northeast corner of Hacks 

Cross Rd and Airport Rd, known as 8274 Hacks Cross Rd.  

 

 

 

. 

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Aerial Map  

2. Utility Map 

3. Final Plat 

Page 44 of 160



Page 2 of 3 
 

1. BACKGROUND:  

The applicant, Bob Farley, Farley Surveying, on behalf of Vish Prasad, Vants Realty LLC, property 

owner, requests approval of a final plat for the Prasad Rheumotolgy 1 Lot subdivision. The property 

is ±2.06 acres and was annexed into the city in 1990.  It contains a commercial structure and drive 

thru. To fulfill City regulatory requirements, the subject property must be platted and recorded 

before a building permit may be issued for any improvements on the proposed lot.  

 

2. ANALYSIS: 

2.1 Zoning and Lots  

The subject property is located at the eastern side of Hacks Cross Rd., just north of Airport Rd. 

in the M-2, Heavy Industrial zoning district.  The applicant has submitted a separate application 

(see Application #ZP25-0012) for the rezoning of the property to C-2, Highway Commercial 

district. The final plat adheres to the City’s lot requirements. 

 

2.2 Utilities  

Public utility services such as water sewer and gas are readily available in the vicinity of the 

property.   A 4” gas line and a 12” water line are located on the eastern side of Hacks Cross Rd. 

An 8” sewer line is located at the southeastern corner of the property along Airport Rd.  Any 

necessary utility extension shall be the responsibility of the developer.  

 

2.3 Transportation  

There are existing paved 

access driveways along 

Hacks Cross Rd and 

Airport Rd.  The roads 

are curbed and do not 

contain sidewalks on 

either side. Thus, a 

condition of approval 

will be to waive the 5’ 

wide sidewalks along 

the subject property’s 

frontage. 

 

2.4 Financial Guarantee  

Should the property 

owner desire to record 

the plat before 

completion of and 

required improvements, 

the property owner shall provide a financial guarantee to the City.  

 

 

 

 Water  

 Gas 

 Sewer 

Page 45 of 160



Page 46 of 160



8274 Hacks Cross Rd.

EXHIBIT 1 AERIAL MAP

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community, Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS,

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

12/2/2025, 11:14:29 AM
0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.05 0.10.03 km

1:2,257

City of Olive Branch

Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS ORPage 47 of 160



2"

4"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"8"

8"
8"

8"

6"

6"

12
"

6"

12"

8274 Hacks Cross Rd.

EXHIBIT 2 UTILITY MAP

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community, Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS,

GAS MAIN LINES

Not Field Verified

SEWER MANHOLE

SEWER GRAVITY MAIN

NOT FIELD VERIFIED

HYDRANTS

WATER MAINS

NOT FIELD VERIFIED

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

12/2/2025, 11:34:53 AM
0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.05 0.10.03 km

1:2,257

City of Olive Branch

Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS ORPage 48 of 160



Page 49 of 160

Text
 FARLEY SURVEYING, LLC

Text_1
 ROBERT EDWARD FARLEY

Text_2
 235 WEST CHULAHOMA AVENUE

Text_3
 HOLLY SPRINGS, MS 38635

Text_4
 Phone: (662) 544-2050

Text_5
 bob@farleysurveying.com



 
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA NO.: New Business No.1 (File # SD-25-0039)   MEETING DATE:  12/09/25    
          
 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The 

Preliminary Plat of Rosewood 

Subdivision was approved on January 

21, 2025.  The conditions of the 

Preliminary Plat approval set forth the 

design, density, placement, and sizes 

of the 118 lots.  This application 

proposes to amend approval 

condition # 6.  It seeks to reduce the 

minimum heated square footage of 

future houses on the 17 preliminary 

lots located in northern 22.05+/ acres 

area, “Phase III” from 3000 sq. ft. to 

2800 sq. ft.  It also seeks to reduce the 

minimum heated area of future 

houses in the remainder 76 lots from 

3000 sq. ft. and 2800 sq. ft. to 2400 

sq. ft. The applicant submits that the 

relatively smaller house sizes would 

better meet market demand; thus, 

fulfilling a public need.   

 

The current application does not 

propose changes in lot sizes, the 

general layout of the subdivision, 

buffers and/or accessibility 

(transportation).  The proposed 

minimum heated area of houses 

would generally align with houses in 

the property’s surrounding.  

Therefore, staff recommends 

approval. 

CAPTION/SUBJECT: Application to amend Preliminary Plat 

Approval Condition number 6 of Rosewood Subdivision, submitted by 

Chance Walker, Smith-Walker Engineering, on behalf of property 

owner Jon Reeves.  The request is to reduce the minimum heated area 

of houses in the Agricultural-Residential District (A-R) zoned areas in 

the north of the subdivision from 3000 sq. ft. to 2800 sq. ft. and to 

decrease the minimum heated area of houses in all other areas of the 

subdivision from 3000 sq. ft. and 2800 sq. ft. to 2400 sq. ft. The 

82.37+/- acre subject property is zoned A-R and R-1, (Single-Family 

Residential District) and is located on the east side of Craft Road and 

north of College Road, known as 7200 College Road.  
 

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Aerial Map 

2. Board of Aldermen Order 

Approving Preliminary 

Plat 

3. Housing Comparison 

Worksheets 

4. Future Land Use Map 
 

  

Page 50 of 160



 
Page 2 of 4 

 

BACKGROUND: On January 21, 2025, the Board of Aldermen rezoned 46.88+/- acres portion of a piece 

of property, located approximately ¼ mile northeast of the intersection of Craft and College Rd., from A-

R, Agricultural Residential District to R-1 Single Family Residential.  

 

The subject area of the rezoning consisted of 92 detached single family residential lots, being part of the 

“Rosewood Subdivision.”  Together with the rest of the parcel that was not rezoned, the “Rosewood 

Subdivision” preliminary plat sought to create 118 lots.   The smallest buildable proposed lot was 15,000 

sq ft. and the largest was 60,882 sq ft.  Future larger lots of at least 1 acre, however, adjoin Montrose 

subdivision to the north and were suggested along College Rd to the south. Two lots along the creek that 

runs from the northwestern line to the south end of the property will be dedicated for stormwater retention.   

A 50’ wide tree preservation easement along the east perimeter would eventually be recorded via a final 

plat in favor of the HOA. 

ANALYSIS:   The developer proposes to reduce the minimum heated area of houses that would adjoin 

Montrose Subdivision from 3,000 sq. ft to 2800 sq. ft.   The Conditions, Covenants, and Restrictions 

(CCRs) of Montrose Subdivision provides for houses with 2400 sq. ft. minimum heated area.    

City policy and historical practice define properties within 500 ft of concerned parcel of land as “affected 

area”.   Table 1 shows the heated area (base area) of existing houses in Montrose Subdivision and in Oak 

Park Subdivision that are within 500 ft of the Rosewood Subdivision for which the developer proposes to 

reduce the min. heated area of house sizes from 3,000 sq. ft. to 2,800 sq. ft. 

 

 

 

Table 1 

Table 1   

Page 51 of 160



 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Considering the Average Base Area is 2,399 sq. ft., which is less than the proposed 2,800 sq. ft. in 

Rosewood Subdivision it may be asserted that the proposed minimum heated area reduction would not 

negatively affect the character of the area.   

The developer also proposes to reduce the minimum heated area of houses in the rest of the subdivision 

from 3,000 sq. ft. and 2,800 sq. ft. to 2400 sq. ft.   

The Oak Park CCRs stipulate that “In no case shall the total heated footage be less than 2000 sq. ft.”  

Table 2 below shows the heated area (base area) of existing houses in Oak Park Subdivision that are within 

500 ft of the area in Rosewood Subdivision for which the developer proposes to reduce the min. heated 

area of houses from 3,000 sq. ft. and 2,800 sq. ft. to 2,400 sq. ft.  

 

 

 

 

 

Considering that the “affected area” has an Average Base Area of 2,201 sq. ft., which is less than the 

proposed 2,400 sq. ft.; it may be asserted that the suggested minimum area reduction would not 

negatively affect the character of the area. 

From a public need perspective, the proposed reductions would broaden housing options and promote 

housing attainability in the City.  The applicant provided a new-home comparison worksheet showing 

market data for homes of similar size. Of all homes sold in DeSoto County from January to October 2025, 

only 20% were houses with a minimum heated area of 2,800 heated sq. ft. to 3,000 heated sq. ft. in Olive 

Branch.  

Table 2   

Page 52 of 160



Page 53 of 160



ROSEWOOD  7200 College Rd

EXHIBIT 1 AERIAL MAP

Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO,
NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

11/24/2025, 2:52:26 PM
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:9,028

City of Olive Branch

Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS ORPage 54 of 160



Page 55 of 160



Page 56 of 160



Page 57 of 160



Page 58 of 160



Page 59 of 160



Page 60 of 160



Page 61 of 160



Page 62 of 160



Page 63 of 160



Page 64 of 160



ROSEWOOD  7200 College Rd

EXHIBIT 4 FUTURE LAND USE MAP

Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO,
NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

OB FUTURE LAND USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

AGRICULTURAL / RURAL RESIDENTIAL

RURAL ESTATE

SUBURBAN NEIGHBORHOOD

GREENSPACE

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

11/24/2025, 2:54:26 PM
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:9,028

City of Olive Branch

Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS ORPage 65 of 160



 
Page 1  

 

 
AGENDA NO.: New Business 2 (File #SD25-0036)         MEETING DATE: 12/9/2025          
 
 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The applicant, Andy Richardson, R&H Engineering, on behalf of Sunset 
Creek Farms, LLC, property owner submits for consideration the Final Plat for Ansley Point, a 2-lot 
subdivision of a vacant and un-platted 0.82± ac property located at the northeast corner of the intersection 
of Hamilton Cir N and Hamilton Cir W. The property is zoned R-2, Single-Family Residential, which 
requires that lots be at least 9,000 sf. Lot 1 and Lot 2 will be 20,248 sf and 15,594 sf respectively. The 
plat includes dedication of sufficient right-of-way for the extension of Hummingbird Dr to connect with 
Hamilton Cir N and Hamilton Circle W at a T-intersection in the future. Public utilities are available to 
service the proposed lots. The plat meets both zoning and subdivision regulation requirements, albeit with 
a waiver of sidewalks. Staff recommends approval subject to various conditions. 
    
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

CAPTION / SUBJECT: Application for a Final Plat for Ansley Point 
Subdivision, submitted by Andy Richardson, R&H Engineering & 
Surveying, LLC, on behalf of Sunset Creek Farms, LLC, Kevin Bynum, 
property owner.  The request is to create two residential lots totaling 
0.82+/-acres.  The subject property is zoned R-1, Single-Family 
Residential District.  The property is located at the northeast corner of 
Hamilton Cir N and Hamilton Cir W, known as 6602 Hamilton Cir N. 
(File # SD-25-0036). 
 
 
 

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBITS: 
1. Final Plat 
2. Aerial Map 
3. Future Land Use 

Map 
4. Proposed Roadway 

Alignment 

Fig. 1: Vicinity Parcels 
 
 

Fig. 2: Proposed Lot 1 and 2 
 
 

H
um

m
in

gb
ird

 D
r 

NORTH 

Page 66 of 160



 
Page 2  

 

 
1. BACKGROUND:  

 
General Information  

Applicant  Andy Richardson, P.E; P.L.S. Engineer and Surveyor for Sunset 
Creek Farms, LLC (Property Owner)  

Applicant’s Status Agent Representative of Property Owner 

Current Zoning of Property R-1, Single-Family Residential (Rezoned 08/19/2025)  

Requested Action Approve the Final Plat for the proposed 2-Lot, Ansley Point 
Subdivision  

Purpose Create two lots from a single un-platted parcel 

Location     North of the intersection of Hamilton Cir W and Hamilton Cir N 

Size of Parent Parcel + 0.82 acres 

Existing Land Use Vacant  

Surrounding Zoning and 
Land Use  

Direction Zoning Land Use 

North R-1 Vacant (Acree Farms 
Subdivision proposed) 

East AR Single Family Residential 

South R-3 Single-Family Residential 

West AR Vacant 

Future Land Use Designation 
 

Suburban Neighborhood 

Character: Suburban neighborhoods have lot sizes ranging from 
6,000 sq. ft. to 30,000 sq. ft., with most in the 12,000 – 15,000 sq. 
ft. range. These subdivisions generally have urban roadway sections 
(curb, gutter and sidewalks). However, there are a number of older 
single-family subdivisions constructed before sidewalks were 
required and a number of newer planned developments that were 
permitted to develop with rural roadway sections (open swales, no 
curb or sidewalks). 

Applicable Regulations Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Regulations, and other land use 
regulations of the City where applicable  

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 67 of 160



 
Page 3  

 

2. ANALYSIS: 
 
2.1. Zoning (R-1) 

Item Zoning 
Requirement 

Proposed Lots 

Minimum Lot Size 12,500 
sf min. 

Lot 1: 20,248 sf               Lot 2: 15,594 sf 
 

Front Setback 35 ft Lots 1 and 2 will have a 35 ft front yard setback, 
which meets the required minimum 

Side Setback 8 ft minimum Lot 1: 12 ft       Lot 2: 8 ft and 12 ft 
Rear Setback 30 ft  Lots 1 and 2 will have a 30 ft rear yard setback, 

which meets the required minimum 
Minimum width at building 
setback line 

85 ft Lot 1 will have a minimum width at the building 
line of ±96.5 ft along Hamilton Cir N, which meets 
the required minimum 
Lot 1 will have a minimum width at the building 
line of ±187 ft along the proposed Hummingbird 
Dr, which meets the required minimum 
Lot 2 will have a minimum width at the building 
line of 85.38 ft along Hamilton Cir N, which meets 
the required minimum 

Maximum Density 3.5 dwelling 
units per ac 

Lot 1 and Lot 2 will have a density of 2.4 units per 
ac which meets the required minimum 

 
2.2. Utilities 

Utility lines are readily available in the area, with 12” and 3” water mains located in the 
Hamilton Circle right-of-way. A 2” gas main is also located within the Hamilton Circle 
right-of-way. There is also an 8” water main with a hydrant located to the northwest of the 
site within the Hummingbird Drive right-of-way. An 8” sewer line with manhole runs 
north/south along the west property line. An east/west 8” sewer line ties into the manhole 
along the north property line.    

 

SITE 

Fig. 3: Area Utility Layout 
 
 

Page 68 of 160



 
Page 4  

 

 
 

2.3. Transportation 
According to the Comprehensive Plan 2040, Hamilton Circle and Hummingbird Drive, if 
connected, would serve as an alternate minor route between Goodman Rd (Principal 
Arterial) and Bluebird Ln. (Major Collector). The proposed Lots 1 and 2 are midpoint 
between Craft Rd. and Davidson Rd., which are both north-south section line roads built 
on the one-mile grid system.  
 
The applicant proposes to dedicate right-of-way for the future extension of Hummingbird 
Dr southward to Hamilton Cir N and Hamilton Cir W. The applicant, however, does not 
propose to be responsible for this extension.  
 
The property owner also proposes to dedicate right-of-way on Hamilton Cir W, which will 
permit Hummingbird Dr, Hamilton Cir N, and Hamilton Cir W to intersect at a “T” in the 
future. Connecting Hummingbird Dr. and Hamilton Circle would create a north-south 
alternate to reach Goodman Rd. and Bluebird / Curbo Ln., which are east-west section line 
roads.   

 
2.4. Bond 

No construction of major public infrastructure is required; hence, financial guarantee for 
infrastructure completion is not necessary before recordation of the plat. 
 

2.5. Variances and Deviations 
The applicant does not request a variance or deviation from the standards of the Zoning 
Ordinance and/or Subdivision Regulations as may be applicable to the subject property. 
Staff does not find that a variance or deviation is necessary. 
 

2.6. Waivers 
The requirement for sidewalks on the future east side of the proposed Hummingbird Dr 
extension and the future north side of the Hamilton Cir W extension is requested to be 
waived due to the rural street section of this portion of the roadway.  
 
The applicant has requested a waiver of responsibility to extend Hummingbird Dr and to 
widen/straighten Hamilton Cir W in front of the property. However, the property owner 
does propose to dedicate right-of-way on Hamilton Cir W, which will permit Hummingbird 
Dr, Hamilton Cir N, and Hamilton Cir W to intersect at a “T” in the future. 
 

3. NEXT STEPS 
Upon recommendation by the Planning Commission, the plat will be forwarded to the Board of 
Mayor and Aldermen for consideration. If approved by the Board, the plat would need to be 
recorded.  Once the plat has been recorded, building permit(s) may be issued for proposed 
development(s) on the lots in accordance with the applicable City’s land development regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69 of 160



Page 70 of 160



Page 71 of 160



Aerial Map

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community, Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS,

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

11/25/2025, 11:22:14 AM
0 0.01 0.030.01 mi

0 0.03 0.050.01 km

1:1,128

City of Olive Branch

Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS ORPage 72 of 160



SUBURBAN NEIGHBORHOOD SUBURBAN NEIGHBORHOOD

SUBURBAN NEIGHBORHOOD

SUBURBAN NEIGHBORHOOD

SUBURBAN NEIGHBORHOOD

Future Land Use Map

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community, Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS,

OB FUTURE LAND USE

SUBURBAN NEIGHBORHOOD

Thoroughfare Plan (2004)

 

CP

Collector

FP

MAP

MCP

Major Arterial

Minor Arterial

Minor Collector

PAP

PC

Primary Arterial

SB

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

11/25/2025, 11:28:47 AM
0 0.01 0.030.01 mi

0 0.03 0.050.01 km

1:1,128

City of Olive Branch

Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS ORPage 73 of 160



Page 74 of 160



 
Page 1  

 

 
AGENDA NO.: PC New Business 3 (File #SD25-0038)       MEETING DATE: 12/9/2025          
 
 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The applicant, Caleb Gill, Civil Link, on behalf of property owner Mike 
Bailey, submits for consideration a Final Plat for Malco Olive Branch Subdivision, Phase 3, Lot 4, being 
a ±3.22 ac 1-lot subdivision within a vacant and un-platted ±21.82 ac parent tract. The property is located 
immediately west of the adjacent Malco Olive Branch Cinema and south of the right-of-way terminus of 
Grandiflora Dr. There are existing public sewer and water lines to service the lot. Staff recommends 
approval with the extension of sidewalks and other conditions.     

 

  

CAPTION / SUBJECT: Application for a Final Plat for Malco Olive 
Branch Subdivision, Phase 3, submitted by Caleb Gill, Civil-Link, on 
behalf of property owner Mike Bailey.  The request is to create a single 
commercial lot of 3.22+/-acres.  The subject property is zoned C-4, 
Planned Commercial District, and is located at the south end of 
Grandiflora Drive, and north of Goodman Road.  (File #SD-25-0038). 
 

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBITS: 
1. Final Plat 
2. Aerial Map 
3. Future Land Use Map 

 

Fig. 1: Subject Property 
 
 

Proposed Lot 4 

Malco Olive 
Branch Cinema 

Access Easement 

Access Easement 

Vacant Tract 

Goodman Rd 

Stormwater Detention Easement 

In
gr

es
s/E

gr
es

s E
as

em
en

t 

N 

±3.22 ac 

Page 75 of 160



 
Page 2  

 

 
1. BACKGROUND:  

 
General Information  

Applicant  Caleb Brown, Civil Link for Mike Bailey (Property Owner)  

Applicant’s Status Agent Representative of Property Owner 

Current Zoning of Property C-4, Planned Commercial District 

Requested Action Approve the Final Plat for a proposed ±3.22 ac Lot 4, Malco Olive 
Branch Subdivision Phase 3 

Purpose Create a commercial lot for a Planned Commercial Development  

Location     Approximately 600 ft north of Hwy 302 (Goodman Rd) 

Size of Parent Parcel + 21.82 acres 

Existing Land Use Vacant  

Surrounding Zoning and 
Land Use  

Direction Zoning Land Use 

North R-3 Single Family Residential 

East C-4 Cinema 

South C-4 Restaurant  

West C-4 Vacant 

Future Land Use Designation 
 

Commercial Corridor 

Character: Commercial corridors are developed with highway 
oriented commercial uses in a linear, or strip development pattern. 
Goodman Road (HWY 302) is the City’s primary example of a 
commercial corridor with retail, restaurants, services, and office 
uses, but there are other corridors identified on the Future Land 
Use Map that incorporate commercial businesses with a heavier 
service orientation and an industrial orientation. These areas are 
designed for vehicular access; pedestrian facilities are 
either not available or very limited. 

Applicable Regulations Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Regulations, and other land use 
regulations of the City where applicable  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 76 of 160



 
Page 3  

 

 
2. ANALYSIS: The development standards for Malco West are set out below: 

 
2.1. Zoning (Existing C-4 Planned Commercial District) 

Item Prop. Zoning 
Requirement 

Proposed Lot 

Minimum Lot Size N/A + 3.22 ac 
 

Front Setback 50 ft min. A front setback of 50 ft is required by the project 
text 

Side Setback 20 ft min. A side setback of 20 ft is required by the project text 
Rear Setback 35 ft min. A rear setback of 35 ft is required by the project text 
Minimum width at building 
setback line 

No 
Requirement 

The proposed Lot 4 will have a minimum width at 
the building setback line of 250 ft as per the 
submitted plat 

Maximum Density N/A N/A 
 
 

2.2. Utilities 
Utility lines are readily available in the area, with 8” water and gravity sewer lines located 
to the north in the Grandiflora Dr right-of-way (Ivy Trails Subdivision). An 8” gravity 
sewer main is located along the western property line of the parent tract. There is a 10” 
water main stub out with a hydrant located to the east of the site within the Malco Cinema 
parking lot. An 8” sewer line with manhole runs north/south along the west property line. 
A ±2.62 ac stormwater detention easement is located to the south along Goodman Rd. 
  

 

Proposed 
Lot 4 

Fig. 3: Area Utility Layout 
 
 

8 
in

ch
 G

ra
vi

ty
 S

ew
er

 L
in

e 

8 inch Gravity  
Sewer Line 
8 inch Water  
Main 

10 inch Water  
Main stub out 

Goodman Rd 

Grandiflora Dr 

Hydrant (typ) 

Manhole (typ) 

Stormwater Detention Easement 

Parent 
Tract 

N 

Page 77 of 160



 
Page 4  

 

 
 

2.3. Transportation 
According to the Comprehensive 
Plan 2040, Goodman Rd serves as 
the principal arterial route running 
east-west further south of the 
proposed lot. The proposed Lot 4 is 
also located almost midpoint 
between Hamilton Circle W and 
Davidson Rd., which are both north-
south section line roads built on the 
one-mile grid system. 

  
 
  

There are existing sidewalks that run 
along both the north and east 
property lines of Lot 3. Sidewalks 
should be added and extended along 
the north and west side of the access 
easements for pedestrian 
connectivity and accessibility to the 
proposed lot.   

 
 

2.4. Bond 
No construction of major public infrastructure is required; hence, financial guarantee for 
infrastructure completion is not necessary before recordation of the plat. 
 

2.5. Variances and Deviations 
The applicant does not request a variance or deviation from the standards of the Zoning 
Ordinance and/or Subdivision Regulations as may be applicable to the subject property. 
Staff does not find that a variance or deviation is necessary. 
 

2.6. Waivers 
No waiver of required subdivision infrastructure improvement is applicable to this 
subdivision request. 

 

3. NEXT STEPS 
Upon recommendation by the Planning Commission, the plat will be forwarded to the Board of 
Mayor and Aldermen for consideration. If approved by the Board, the plat would need to be 
recorded.  Once the plat has been recorded, building permit(s) may be issued for proposed 
development(s) on the lot in accordance with the applicable City’s land development regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Lot 4 

Lot 3 Existing Sidewalk 

Extend Sidewalk 

Extend  
Sidewalk 

N 

Page 78 of 160



Page 79 of 160



Page 80 of 160



Aerial Map

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community, Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS,

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

11/25/2025, 12:48:45 PM
0 0.06 0.120.03 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

City of Olive Branch

Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS ORPage 81 of 160



Future Land Use Map

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community, Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS,

OB FUTURE LAND USE

RURAL ESTATE

SUBURBAN NEIGHBORHOOD

COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR

PointAddresses

County Outline

Municipalities

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

11/25/2025, 12:50:22 PM
0 0.06 0.120.03 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

City of Olive Branch

Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS ORPage 82 of 160



Page 83 of 160



Page 84 of 160



Page 85 of 160



Page 86 of 160



Page 87 of 160



Page 88 of 160



Page 89 of 160



Page 90 of 160



Page 91 of 160



Page 92 of 160



Page 93 of 160



Page 94 of 160



Page 95 of 160



Page 96 of 160



Page 97 of 160



Page 98 of 160



Page 99 of 160



Page 100 of 160



Page 101 of 160



Page 102 of 160



Page 103 of 160



Page 104 of 160



Page 105 of 160



Page 106 of 160



Page 107 of 160



Page 108 of 160



Page 109 of 160



Page 110 of 160



Page 111 of 160



Page 112 of 160



Page 113 of 160



Page 114 of 160



Page 115 of 160



Page 116 of 160



Page 117 of 160



Page 118 of 160



Page 119 of 160



Page 120 of 160



Page 121 of 160



 
Page 1 of 5 

AGENDA NO.: New Business No. 5 (File# SD25-0037)       MEETING DATE: 12/9/25  
    
 
 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: This application seeks Preliminary Plat approval to subdivide 43.2+/- acres into 8 

commercial lots, privately 

maintained commercial 

ingress and egress easements, a 

public street, and three 

common open spaces for 

stormwater management. The 

subdivision would be known 

as “The Crossings at Olive 

Branch Subdivision,” and 

would be at the southwest 

corner of the intersection of 

Hacks Cross Rd and Hwy 302. 

The property is zoned C-2, 

Highway Commercial 

Districts. Phase 1 development 

is intended to include a 

40,000sq ft grocery store. A 

new street to be built in phases 

would connect Hacks Cross Rd 

to Old Goodman Rd. Utilities 

are generally available in the 

vicinity of the property. All 

improvements shall be the 

developer’s responsibility.     

Staff recommends approval 

subject to various conditions. 

 

 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND:   

 

The subject property requested for subdivision is 43.2+/- acres located on the south side of HWY 302, 

between Old Goodman Rd. / Branch Rd. and Hacks Cross Rd. within the C-2, Highway Commercial 

zoning district.  Records show the northern part of the subject property was annexed into the City in 1990 

with the remainder annexed in 1996.  Its C-2 designation appears on zoning maps dating back to the early 

1990’s and 2000’s. 

CAPTION/SUBJECT: Application for a Preliminary Plat 

for The Crossings at Olive Branch Subdivision, submitted 

by Mike Davis, The Reaves Firm, on behalf of Cooper 

Realty Investments Inc, property owner.  The request is to 

subdivide 41.5+/-acres into 7 lots.  The subject property is 

zoned C-2, Highway Commercial District, and is located at 

the southwest corner of Hwy 302 and Hacks Cross Road. 

(File # SD25-0037). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Aerial Map 

2. Zoning and Utility Maps 

3. Preliminary Plat – The Crossings at 

Olive Branch Subdivision 

4. Preliminary Plat previously 

approved by Board of Aldermen 

(6/20/06)    
 

 
 

Lot 1 

Lot 2 

Lot 3 

Lot 4 

Lot 5 

Lot 6 

Lot 7 

Lot 8 

Page 122 of 160



 
Page 2 of 5 

Aerial maps from 1996 show the property had several single-family homes on it prior to the construction 

of the HWY 302 bypass 25 years ago, but it is currently vacant.  It is comprised of both wooded and 

cleared areas and a ¾ acre pond in the southwest corner.  Running east-west through the property is the 

right-of-way of Old Goodman Rd., which was in use prior to completion of the bypass.  The Old Goodman 

Rd. right-of-way is approximately 95 ft. in width.  The paved road remains in place and there are overhead 

electric utility lines running parallel along its north side until they reach and cross over HWY 302.   

 

The Preliminary Plat proposes a 7,383 sq ft (0.169 ac) portion of the existing Old Goodman Rd. right-of-

way be vacated and its land area incorporated into future Lot 4 of the subdivision.  The Subdivision 

infrastructure is proposed to be developed in multiple phases. As shown in the Development Concept Plan 

below, Phase 1 would consist of a 40,000sq ft. grocery store on the eastern half of the property, close to 

Hacks Cross Rd. Areas labelled as “Future Development” may be developed in multiple phases. 
 

 
Figure 1: Development Concept Plan 

 

Page 123 of 160



 
Page 3 of 5 

ANALYSIS: 

 

1) Zoning:  

 

The property is zoned C-2, Highway Commercial. This conventional zoning district allows standard 

commercial uses by right, such as shopping centers, grocery stores, restaurants, hotels, offices, and auto 

sales and service.  

 

2) Lots:   

 

The Preliminary Plat proposes 8 developable lots that all meet the minimum size and dimensional 

requirements of the C-2 zoning district, which upon future (final) platting and development will need to 

maintain a minimum of 25% greenspace and require a front setback of 50 ft. and a rear setback of 20 ft. 

measured from the public rights-of-way of HWY 302 and Hacks Cross Rd. and not the internal drive 

system.   The City’s Design Review Ordinance includes architectural and landscaping requirements, with 

30 ft. wide buffers along the south and west property lines that abut residential zoning districts. The 

preliminary plat proposes a 40ft wide buffer along the property line to the west (adjoining The Branch 

Subdivision). 
 

The Preliminary Plat proposes a 2-

phase development program.  Phase 1 

includes Lot 2, a portion of a new 

public street with a roundabout, 

portions of internal ingress and egress 

easements, and a common open space 

reserved for stormwater management. 

Phase 2 would involve the connection 

of this new street to Old Goodman Rd. 

Connection to Branch Rd. may create a 

need for off-site transportation 

improvements at the Old Goodman Rd. 

/ HWY 302 intersection.  As such, a 

traffic study would be necessary before 

the commencement of this “Future 

Development” phase(s) to determine 

whether traffic signals are warranted at 

the intersection of the new street and 

Hacks Cross Rd and at the Old 

Goodman Rd and Hwy 302 

intersection.   

 

3) Utilities:  

 

All utilities are available to the site and 

appear to be sufficiently sized to 

support future development.  Utility maps depict a 12-inch water line along Hacks Cross Rd. connecting 

to a 10-inch line located within the Old Goodman Rd. right-of-way and an 8-inch water line within the 

Branch Rd. right-of-way.  There is an 8-inch sewer line located within the rights-of-way of Old Goodman 

Page 124 of 160



 
Page 4 of 5 

Rd. and Branch Rd. as well as gas lines within the rights-of-way and around the perimeter of the 43.2+/- 

acre subject property.  Like the overhead electrical facilities located within the Old Goodman Rd. right-

of-way, existing water, sewer, and gas lines will need to be rerouted along the path of the new driveway 

and placed into public utility easements that will be established upon approval and recording of Final 

Plats.  The relocations would be necessary for the new lots to be developable in their proposed 

configurations and for the portion of the Old Goodman Rd. right-of-way to be duly vacated. 

 

Based on a study done in conjunction with the Vanderburg Flats project, which was denied in 2023, the 

City Engineer identified a potential need for off-site sanitary sewer improvements in a section of Old 

Goodman Rd. located approximately ½ mile west of the subject property.  However, this would not likely 

be required until a “Future Development” phase. 
 

4) Access & Circulation:   
 

Historically, on June 20, 2006, the Board of Aldermen approved a Preliminary Plan / Plat to subdivide the 

property into 12 commercial lots, with a similar road configuration connecting Old Goodman Rd. to Hacks 

Cross Road (Exhibit 4).  Approval included signals at both the intersection of Old Goodman Rd. / HWY 

302 and at the intersection of the proposed new roadway and Hacks Cross.        

 

A new road to be constructed in phases would connect Hacks Cross Rd to Old Goodman Rd, which in 

turn connects to Branch Rd. Internal ingress and egress easements would connect lots 1 to 4. Only one lot 

intended for a 40,000sq ft grocery store would be developed in the first phase of the subdivision. The 

driveway closest to Hacks Cross Rd for this grocery store would be right-in-right-out only. Before any lot 

in the “Future Development” phases is developed, it is recommended that the developer submit a traffic 

study that should address whether traffic light signal(s) would be needed at the intersection of the new 

road and Hacks Cross Rd and Old Goodman Rd and Hwy 302. 
                      

NEXT STEPS:  

 

Upon approval of a Preliminary Plat, the City Engineer is authorized to approve civil plans for installation 

and relocation of project infrastructure (i.e. roads and utilities).  In turn, infrastructure installation can 

commence.  A Final Plat must be reviewed by the Planning Commission and approved by the Board of 

Aldermen and recorded for building permits can be issued for vertical construction on any of the proposed 

lots.  Unless the developer desires otherwise while meeting subdivision regulations, the Phase 1 Final Plat 

would include one (1) commercial lot a Phase 1 public street section, a stormwater detention area, and 

cross access transportation easements.   

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   

 

Upon finding that the plat meets zoning ordinance and subdivision regulation requirements, approve and 

recommend that the Board of Aldermen approve the Preliminary Plat for “The Crossings at Olive Branch 

Subdivision” to subdivide 43.2+/- acres into 8 commercial lots, three (3) common open spaces for 

stormwater management, and private ingress/egress easements, subject to the following conditions:   

1. Improvements to be the responsibility of the developer and not the responsibility of the City of Olive 

Branch. 

 

2. Future applications shall comply with the City’s land development regulations. 

Page 125 of 160



 
Page 5 of 5 

 

3. Civil plan set for grading, drainage, roads and utilities to be approved by the City Engineer. 

 

4. The northernmost access for proposed Lot 1 is limited to right-in-right-out only for passenger 

vehicles and no additional driveways along Hacks Cross Rd. are permitted for Lots 2 & 3.   

     

5. HWY 302 sidewalks are waived, but sidewalks are required along the frontages of Hack Cross Road, 

Old Goodman Road, and Branch Road, and both sides of the new public street and all internal private 

drives, with curb and gutter sections as determined by the City Engineer. 

 

6. Prior to the development of any lot other than prospective Lot 1, the developer shall submit to the 

City of Olive Branch a traffic impact analysis, including signal warrant analysis, to determine 

whether and when traffic light signals may be required at the intersection of the new public street 

and Hacks Cross Rd., and Old Goodman Rd and Hwy 302. The study shall likewise determine any 

other road improvements that may be needed within and off-site to handle the transportation impact 

of the subdivision at partial or full build out. 

      
7. The developer shall install drainage pipe, erosion control material, sewer mains and service, water 

mains, fire hydrants, and services, curb and gutter for all streets, and gravel or soil cement base for 

the streets and asphalt (layering and thickness to be determined by City Engineer), before the plat of 

the subdivision is recorded as may be determined to be necessary of the City Engineer.  A 

performance guarantee must be filed for the remainder of the improvement in the amount set by the 

City Engineer.  This may include but is not necessarily limited to additional asphalt and sidewalks. 

 

8. Streetlight plans to be submitted to the City Engineer for approval. 

 

9. Street identifications and traffic control signs to be installed by the developer to City specifications.   

 

10. With the exception of the existing overhead electrical facilities that may be re-routed, all other 

utilities and services (electric, telephone, cable, etc.) to be installed underground. 
 

 
 

 

REPORT PREPARED BY: ___________________________________ DATE: ____________ 
 
MOTION BY: _________________________ SECOND BY: ____________________________ 
 

   

VOTE DORR JONES LEWIS LONG SENGER SINGH STRATTON 

YES ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ 

NO ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ 

ABSTAIN ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ 

 

Venard Asongayi, AICP, CFM, DPA 12/04/2025 

Page 126 of 160



AERIAL VIEW MAP

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community,
Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N
Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA, Geodatastyrelsen,
Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA, Intermap, and the GIS user

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

12/4/2025, 12:23:07 PM
0 0.09 0.170.04 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

City of Olive Branch
Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE INFORMATION

Page 127 of 160



ZONING MAP

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community,
Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N
Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA, Geodatastyrelsen,
Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA, Intermap, and the GIS user

Zoning

A

A-R

A-R OVERLAY

C-1

C-2

C-3

C-4

C-5

CM OVERLAY

ER

HISTORIC DISTRICT OVERLAY

M-1

M-2

M-3

MAIN STREET DISTRICT

O

PB

PBP

PO

PUD

PUD OVERLAY

R-1

R-10

R-12

R-12 OVERLAY

R-15

R-15 OVERLAY

R-2

R-20

R-20 OVERLAY

R-3

R-30

R-30 OVERLAY

R-4

R-40

R-40 OVERLAY

R-6

R-6 OVERLAY

R-8

R-8 OVERLAY

R-9

RM-6

RM-8

RO

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

12/4/2025, 12:28:49 PM
0 0.09 0.170.04 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

City of Olive Branch
Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE INFORMATION

Page 128 of 160



4"

3"

6"

3"
3"

3"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

4"

2"

6"

6"

2"
2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

10
"

2"

10"

10"

10
"

10"

8"

2"

10
"

6"

6"

8"

6"

12
"

10"

10"

10"

6"

8"

6"

6"

10"

6"

6"

10"

8"

10"

8"

8"8"

8"

6"

4"

10"

6"

6"

10"

10"

6"6"

10"

6"

10" 10"

6"

10"

6"

12
"

10"

8"

8"

8"

UTILITY MAP

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community,
Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N
Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA, Geodatastyrelsen,
Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA, Intermap, and the GIS user

GAS MAIN LINES

Not Field Verified

SEWER GRAVITY MAIN

NOT FIELD VERIFIED

HYDRANTS

WATER MAINS

FIELD VERIFIED

NOT FIELD VERIFIED

WATER SERVICE LINES

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

12/4/2025, 12:33:18 PM
0 0.09 0.170.04 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

City of Olive Branch
Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE INFORMATION

Page 129 of 160



36
25

35
26 NORTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 35,

TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST,
DESOTO COUNTY, MS

H
AC

KS C
R

O
SS R

D
.

(120' R
.O

.W
.)

EDNA WOODS, ET AL.
(BK. 389, PG. 204)

SE
C

TI
O

N
 'A

' T
H

E 
BR

AN
C

H
BK

. 3
1,

 P
G

. 4
7

SE
C

TI
O

N
 'B

' T
H

E 
BR

AN
C

H
BK

. 3
4,

 P
G

. 3
4

FOUND
R.O.W.
MARKER

F.I.P.

F.I.P.

F.I.P.

F.I.P.

F.I.P.

BR
AN

C
H

 R
D

.

R.O.W. TO BE RELEASED
BY OLIVE BRANCH
7,383 Sq.Ft. (0.169 Acres)

LOT 6 LOT 5

C.O.S. 10

40
' L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 B
U

FF
ER

30' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

LOT 3

40
' I

N
G

R
ES

S 
/ E

G
R

ES
S 

EA
SE

M
EN

T

30
' I

N
G

R
ES

S 
/ E

G
R

ES
S 

ES
M

T.

71,061 
1.631 

Sq.Ft.
Acres

56,939 
1.307 

191,164 
4.388 

Sq.Ft.
AcresFU

TU
R

E 
50

' P
U

B
LI

C
 R

.O
.W

.

STORMWATER

C.O.S. 9
RESERVED FOR

DETENTION

STORMWATER

C.O.S. 8
RESERVED FOR

DETENTION

OLD GOODMAN ROAD
EXIST. 80' R.O.W. TO REMAIN

PUBLIC R.O.W.
(WIDTH VARIES)

48,065 
1.103 

109,296 
2.509 

97,194 
2.231 

MS HWY 302 BYPASS
(250' R.O.W.)

141.48'
1389.60'N88°21'08"E221.20'

1026.92'

342.57'
N89°55'00"E

11
6.

97
'

S0
°0

5'
00

"E

280.15'
N89°55'00"E

342.57'
N89°55'00"E

69
.4

9'
N

0°
06

'0
1"

W

N69°08'24"E
30.08'

S0°05'00"E
11.71'

N89°55'00"E
72.07'

25
1.

22
'

345.01'
N89°55'00"E

S0
°0

5'
00

"E
11

6.
69

'

713.97'
N89°14'27"E

109.43'
N

0°08'57"E

N24°50'27"E
63.45'

1

2

3

4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17
18 19

20

S14°51'05"E
24.71'

S56°42'08"E
Del = 177°06'27"

Rad = 97.71'
Arc = 304.54'
Tan = 7885.92'
Chd = 195.40'

S64°28'52"E
Del = 178°34'49"

361.77'

S47°46'57"E

11
02

.2
8'

75
6.

34
'S

0°
05

'0
0"

E

75
5.

01
' S

0°
05

'0
0"

E

279.47'
S89°13'30"W

S0
°0

5'
00

"E

171.76' 14
1.

39
'

286.71'

N82°22'56"E

109.05'

N63°52'04"E

299.22'
S0°05'00"E

21
1.

92
'

S2
4°

09
'20

"W 85.17'

S74°59'58"W

95.67'

N74°59'58"E

N79°56'50"W
29.65'

N79°56'50"W
69.98'

S3°57'01"W
70.73'

N89°47'14"W
146.59'

N89°47'14"W
146.21'

STORMWATER DETENTION
RESERVED FOR

13
01

.7
2'

N
0°

05
'0

0"
W

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

30

31

Rad = 22.79'
Arc = 53.84'
Tan = 55.50'
Chd = 42.17'

S44°34'15"W
Del = 135°20'45"

Rad = 23.13'
Arc = 54.35'
Tan = 55.36'
Chd = 42.68'

S45°25'45"E
Del = 134°39'15"

29
0.

87
'

56
0.

19
' LOT 2

289,214 
6.639

Sq.Ft.
Acres

Sq.Ft.
Acres

LOT 7
Sq.Ft.
Acres

FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

237,606
5.45

Sq.Ft.
Acres

LOT 1
270,871 

6.218 
Sq.Ft.
Acres

LOT 4
85,951 

1.973 
Sq.Ft.
Acres

Sq.Ft.
Acres

SE
C

TI
O

N
 'A

' T
H

E 
BR

AN
C

H
BK

. 3
1,

 P
G

. 4
7

SE
C

TI
O

N
 'B

' T
H

E 
BR

AN
C

H
BK

. 3
4,

 P
G

. 3
4

MS HWY 302 BYPASS

(250' R.O.W.)

H
AC

KS C
R

O
SS R

D
.

(120' R
.O

.W
.)

MS HWY 302 BYPASS
(250' R.O.W.)

IN
G

R
ES

S 
/ E

G
R

ES
S 

ES
M

T

IN
G

R
ES

S 
/ E

G
R

ES
S 

ES
M

T

FU
TU

R
E 

PU
BL

IC
 R

O
AD

FUTURE DEV.

FUTURE
DETENTION

FUTURE
DEV.

FUTURE
DETENTION

FUTURE
DEV.

FUTURE
DEV.

FUTURE
DEV.

FUTURE
DEV.

FUTURE
DEV.

PHASE 1
PUBLIC
STREET

PHASE 1

PHASE 1
(DETENTION)

FUTURE DEV.

OLD GOODMAN RD
(FUTURE)

BR
AN

C
H

 R
D

6800 Poplar Avenue, Suite 101  Memphis, TN 38138
901.761.2016  Fax: 901.763.2847

www.ReavesFirm.com

Engineering
Planning

Landscape Architecture
Land Surveying

The
Reaves

Firm
INCORPORATED

PRELIMINARY PLAT

SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 7 WEST       OLIVE BRANCH, MISSISSIPPI

SOUTHWEST CORNER of MS HWY. 302 and HACKS CROSS ROAD

NO. OF LOTS:   7 ± 41.5 ACRES PARCELS: 106735000 0002800 & 2802;  106735320 0000100
         & 0000200; 106726000 00003300, 3400 & 3500

OWNER:
COOPER REALTY INVESTMENTS, INC. ET AL

ENGINEER:
THE REAVES FIRM

NOVEMBER 2025 SCALE: 1" = 100' SHEET 1 OF 2

The Crossings at Olive Branch Subdivision

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

North

100 0 100

SCALE: 1"=100'

Ch
ris

tin
e 

20
x2

4 
Z:

\2
02

5\
25

-0
18

2 
41

ac
 S

W
C 

Ha
ck

s C
ro

ss
 &

 H
igh

wa
y 3

02
, O

liv
e 

Br
an

ch
 M

S\
01

 P
re

lim
 P

lan
nin

g\
Pr

eli
m

ina
ry

 P
lat

.d
wg

  N
ov

 1
3,

 2
02

5 
- 1

1:
54

am

 copyright 2025  - The Reaves Firm, Incorporated

JOB # 25-0182

N
VICINITY MAP

nts

ZONING: C-2

PHASE MAP

Page 130 of 160



GOODMAN RD.

(100' R
.O.W

.)

MS HWY 302 BYPASS

(250' R.O.W.)

F.I.P.

F.I.P.F.I.P.

F.I.P.

204,520 
4.695 

109.43'
N

0°08'57"E

222.72'

N50°08'00"E

S69°54'53"E
59.59'

21

S39°41'41"E
28.74'

Rad = 99.40'
Arc = 309.76'
Tan = 7885.90'
Chd = 198.78'

S50°40'59"E
Del = 178°33'21"

Rad = 199.04'
Arc = 615.25'
Tan = 7884.01'
Chd = 397.95'

S56°42'08"E
Del = 177°06'27"

S1°00'37"E
37.28'

S0°46'49"E
70.93'

N89°15'09"E
91.47'

LOT 8

Sq.Ft.
Acres

FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

No     RAD      ARC      TAN          CHORD              DELTA
1 150.00' 54.39' 27.50' 54.10' N10°29'19"W 20°46'36"
2 1969.86' 252.06' 126.20' 251.89' S00°17'05"W 7°19'53"
3 1969.86' 399.49' 200.43' 398.80' S09°11'27"E 11°37'10"
4 30.00' 46.93' 29.80' 42.29' S30°11'12"W 89°37'31"
5 300.00' 131.18' 66.66' 130.14' S87°31'34"W 25°03'12"
6 30.00' 32.36' 17.96' 30.82' N49°02'33"W 61°48'35"
7 112.00' 119.45' 66.11' 113.86' N48°41'24"W 61°06'16"
8 112.00' 151.61' 89.98' 140.30' S61°58'42"W 77°33'32"
9 30.00' 35.09' 19.86' 33.12' S56°42'21"W 67°00'50"

10 325.00' 85.36' 42.92' 85.11' N82°15'48"W 15°02'52"
11 325.00' 423.47' 247.83' 394.14' N37°24'41"W 74°39'21"

14 375.00' 201.40' 103.19' 198.99' S41°31'06"E 30°46'19"
15 375.00' 215.22' 110.66' 212.28' S73°20'44"E 32°52'58"
16 30.00' 35.30' 20.01' 33.29' S56°04'56"E 67°24'34"
17 112.00' 238.80' 202.74' 196.07' S83°27'37"E 122°09'55"
18 30.00' 33.82' 18.96' 32.06' N67°45'18"E 64°35'44"
19 300.00' 131.18' 66.66' 130.14' N87°31'34"E 25°03'12"
20 30.00' 47.12' 30.00' 42.43' S60°00'02"E 90°00'00"
21 322.84' 224.51' 117.01' 220.01' N19°46'22"W 39°50'39"

12 375.00' 49.31' 24.69' 49.28' S03°51'02"E 7°32'04"
13 375.00' 121.18' 61.12' 120.65' S16°52'30"E 18°30'52"

ARC TABLE

Ch
ris

tin
e 

20
x2

4 
Z:

\2
02

5\
25

-0
18

2 
41

ac
 S

W
C 

Ha
ck

s C
ro

ss
 &

 H
igh

wa
y 3

02
, O

liv
e 

Br
an

ch
 M

S\
01

 P
re

lim
 P

lan
nin

g\
Pr

eli
m

ina
ry

 P
lat

.d
wg

  N
ov

 1
3,

 2
02

5 
- 1

1:
55

am

 copyright 2025  - The Reaves Firm, Incorporated

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

_________________________________________________________________________
Signature of owner or authorized representative

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF DESOTO

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

_______________________________________________
Signature of Engineer/Land Surveyor (with license number)

CITY CLERK

MAYOR
_____________________________________

MINUTE BOOK___________ PAGE ______

OLIVE BRANCH MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN

CHAIRPERSON
                           _________________________________

OLIVE BRANCH PLANNING COMMISSION

I/We, SAL SALEH, MANAGING MEMBER, BETHEL CRAFT INVESTORS LLC, owner or
authorized representative of the owner of the property, hereby adopt this as my/our plan
of subdivision and dedicate the right-of-way for the use of roads and utility easements as
shown on the plat of the subdivision to the City of Olive Branch, Mississippi,  for the
public use forever. I certify that I are the owners in fee simple of the property and that no
taxes have become due and payable.  This the ________ day of _________________,
2025.

This is to certify that I have drawn this subdivision shown hereon and that the plat of same is
accurately drawn from information from a ground survey by me.

APPROVED BY THE OLIVE BRANCH, DESOTO COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI, PLANNING
COMMISSION ON THIS THE _____ DAY OF _______________,  2025.

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
OLIVE BRANCH, DESOTO COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI, ON THIS THE _________ DAY
OF __________________, 2025.

I hereby certify that the subdivision plat shown hereon was filed for record in my
office at _____  o'clock  __m, on the _______ day of  ________________, 2025,
and was immediately entered upon the proper index and duly recorded in
Plat Book Number  __________,  Page ___________.

MORTGAGEE'S CERTIFICATE

                                                                     , Mortgagee of the property hereon, hereby adopt
this as our plan of subdivision and dedicate the right-of-way for the roads and utility
easements as shown on the plat to the City of Olive Branch, Mississippi, for public use
forever.  I certify that I am the mortgagee in fee simple of the property and that no taxes have
become due and payable, this the _______ day of ____________, 2025.

__________________________________________________________________

NOTARY'S CERTIFICATE 

State of  TENNESSEE
County of  SHELBY

NOTARY'S CERTIFICATE  (Corporate/Financial Institution)

State of TENNESSEE
County of SHELBY

___________________________
My commission expires

Personally appeared before me, the undersigned authority in and for the said county and state, on
the ________ day of ___________________, 2025, within my jurisdiction, the within named
                                   , who acknowledged that he/she is                                of                              ,
and that for and on behalf of the said corporation, and as its act and deed he/she executed the
above and foregoing certificate, after first having been duly authorized by said corporation so to
do.

_________________________________________
Notary public

___________________________
My commission expires

Personally appeared before me, the undersigned authority in and for the said county and state,
on the ________ day of ___________________, 2025, within my jurisdiction, the within named
SAL SALEH, MANAGING PARTNER, BETHEL CRAFT INVESTORS LLC, who acknowledged
that he/she executed the above and foregoing certificate, for the purpose therein mentioned.

_________________________________________
Notary public

________________
Date / Seal

_____________________________________

CHANCERY COURT
_____________________________________

SAL SALEH, MANAGING MEMBER, BETHEL CRAFT INVESTORS LLC

Signature of owner or authorized representative

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

North

100 0 100

SCALE: 1"=100'

6800 Poplar Avenue, Suite 101  Memphis, TN 38138
901.761.2016  Fax: 901.763.2847

www.ReavesFirm.com

Engineering
Planning

Landscape Architecture
Land Surveying

The
Reaves

Firm
INCORPORATED

PRELIMINARY PLAT

SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 7 WEST       OLIVE BRANCH, MISSISSIPPI

SOUTHWEST CORNER of MS HWY. 302 and HACKS CROSS ROAD

± 41.5 ACRES PARCELS: 106735000 0002800 & 2802;  106735320 0000100
         & 0000200; 106726000 00003300, 3400 & 3500

OWNER:
COOPER REALTY INVESTMENTS, INC. ET AL

ENGINEER:
THE REAVES FIRM

NOVEMBER 2025 SCALE: 1" = 100' SHEET 2 OF 2

The Crossings at Olive Branch Subdivision

JOB # 25-0182

ZONING: C-2

NO. OF LOTS:   7

Page 131 of 160



Page 132 of 160



 
Page 1  

 

 
AGENDA NO.: New Business 6 (File #ZP25-0001)         MEETING DATE: 12/9/2025          

 
 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Barry Bridgforth and Pleasant Hill Land and Development Company seek 

to amend the project text for Robinson Crossing Planned Development and to adopt a preliminary 

development plan for a convenience store with fuel pumps and a car wash as stand-alone permitted uses 

on two prospective lots in Area 9 of the PUD. The proposed amendment does not seek to introduce new 

uses in the said Area 9; both the convenience store with fuel pumps and the car wash are already permitted 

in the Area, albeit the latter being accessory to the former. The amendment simply seeks to decouple the 

two uses and to impose certain development conditions. These suggested conditions for the convenience 

store with fuel pumps include but are not limited to traffic light signalization of the Malone Rd and Church 

Rd intersection and no issuance of a building permit for construction of the store prior to January 20, 2036. 

The architectural design of the store would also be more aligned with the character of houses in the 

surrounding. Thus, staff recommends approval. 

 

 
    

CAPTION / SUBJECT: Application to Amend the Project Text 

for Robinson Crossing PUD and preliminary development plan for 

Area 9, submitted by Shane King, Houston Engineering, on behalf 

of property owners Barry Bridgforth and Pleasant Hill Land and 

Development Company.  The request includes development 

stipulations for permitted convenience store with fuel pumps and 

layout plan for car wash as a standalone use. The 5.72+/-acre 

subject Area 9 is zoned PUD, Planned Unit Development, and is 

located at the southeast corner of Church Road and Malone Road. 

(File # PD-25-0001). 

 

.  

 

 

 

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Aerial View Map 

2. Project Text with Proposed 

Amendments (in Blue) and 

Preliminary Development 

Plan Exhibits  

3. Current Zoning Map 

 

Convenience Store 
with 8 fuel pumps Car Wash 

Church Rd 

Page 133 of 160



 
Page 2  

 

 

1. BACKGROUND:  

General Information  

Applicant  Shane King, Houston Engineering 

Applicant’s Status Agent Representative of Property Owner 

Zoning of Property PUD, Planned Unit Development 

Requested Action Approve amendments to the Robinson Crossing Planned Development 

project text and preliminary development plans for a convenience store 

with fuel pumps and a car wash in Area 9 of the PUD.  

Subject Property Current 2.60 acres Lot 1 of Area 9 of Robinson Crossing Commercial 

Subdivision, with an access drive through a 3.12acres Lot 2 of the same 

Subdivision. 

Existing Land Use Vacant  

 

History of Approvals 

Replacing the “Annebelle” Planned Unit Development (PUD) from 2003, Robinson Crossing was 

approved by DeSoto County Board of Supervisors on March 3, 2004 and annexed into Olive Branch 

effective May 28, 2021.  The PUD is 231.60+/- acres and is located at the southeast corner of Malone 

and Church Roads.  The PUD Master Plan depicts 9 “Areas”.  Areas 1-7 were planned for single family 

and at this juncture of project development, there are over 300 platted single-family lots and 

approximately 250 homes have been built, meaning there are likely over 500 residents in the Robinson 

Crossing neighborhood.  Development has yet to occur in Area 8, which is planned for retirement 

housing, and in Area 9, which is the 5.72+/- acres located at the southeast corner of the intersection of 

Church and Malone Roads that is proposed in this application for a 2-lot commercial subdivision. 

 

Permissible uses in Area 9 were established in the 2004 Robinson Crossing PUD Project Text.  The 

2004 list is recopied, below, and includes “convenience store” and “Car wash as an accessory to 

convenience store” as permitted uses. 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Page 134 of 160



 
Page 3  

 

The lot area does not conform to the minimum lot area of at least 1 ac for AR zoned properties. To 

conform with the minimum lot area requirements, the property must be rezoned to a district where the 

lot size would meet the minimum area requirement. Annexation history shows the City of Olive 

Branch annexed this property in 1990. An affidavit of posting has been filed as well as photographic 

documentation of the public-notification sign installation.    

On November 15, 2022, the Board of Aldermen adopted regulations that amended several of the City’s 

“conventional” zoning districts (C-1, C-2, C-3, C-5, M-1, & M-2) to only allow “Convenience Stores 

with Fuel Pumps” as a conditional use.  A conditional use requires approval of the City’s Board of 

Adjustment at a public hearing.  The regulations included requirements for these establishments to be 

at a signalized intersection with no more than two at a four-way intersection.  On December 17, 2024, 

the Board expanded the regulations to make “Convenience Stores with Fuel Pumps” conditional uses 

in the planned, “non-conventional” zoning districts (C-4 & PUD) and added design requirements.  In 

a companion item, the Board amended Project Texts in 17 planned developments located throughout 

the City.  The approval cited the Robinson Crossing PUD Project Text among the 17, stating, “5.72+/- 

acre “Area 9” of the Robinson Crossing Planned Unit Development (formerly Annabelle), located at 

the southeast corner of Malone Rd. and Church Rd…to remove “Convenience Store” from the list of 

permitted uses and add “Convenience Store with Fuel Pumps” as a conditional use.” 
 

Because there were convenience store development projects that had been underway prior to the 2022 

ordinance and the 2024 revisions – whether they were actively in the planning stages or under 

construction – the 2024 amendment included vesting provisions.  The regulations allowed for projects 

in phases of planning, review, permitting, or construction to meet vesting provisions.  If vested, a 

project could avoid the requirement to obtain a conditional use permit and would not be subject to the 

locational criteria at signalized intersections and other design regulations added in 2024.  Steps and 

timelines proposed to vest a project include having preliminary plat approval by June 30, 2025, final 

plat approved and recorded by September 30, 2025, obtaining civil site plan approval by December 

31, 2025, building permit by March 31, 2026, and completing construction by March 31, 2027. 

 

A final plat for Area of the Robinson Crossing Planned Commercial Development was approved by 

the Mayor and Board of Aldermen on July 15, 2025, and recorded on September 16, 2025. Currently, 

the said Area 9 remains vested for a convenience store with fuel pumps.  

 

The present application seeks to maintain convenience store with fuel pumps as permitted use in Area 

9 while subjecting it to various comparable conditions to those adopted for said use on December 17, 

2024. A separate conditional use permit would not be necessary because in considering the proposed 

project text amendment and associated preliminary development plan, drawn to scale with 

architectural and landscaping designs, the Mayor and Board of Aldermen can exercise the full breadth 

of its zoning authority as applicable to the intended future developments.  

 

ANALYSIS:  

 

1. Traffic  

Just as there are no development timing limitations in the current project text for Robinson Crossing, 

the text does not associate the development of a convenience store with fuel pumps in Area 9 of the 

subdivision with traffic conditions on adjoining roads. The proposed amendment cures this deficiency 

by providing that “The City of Olive Branch shall not issue a building permit for the construction of 

the convenience store with fuel pumps prior to January 20, 2036, and traffic light signalization of the 

Page 135 of 160



 
Page 4  

 

Malone Rd and Church Rd intersection.” 

 

2. Design and Neighborhood Character  

 
Fig. 1. Building Design of the Convenience Store with Fuel Pumps 

 

 
Fig. 2. Building Design of the Car Wash 

 

Apart from buffer requirements, the current project text for Robinson Crossing contains no 

stipulations regarding specific design elements for a convenience store with fuel pumps and a car 

wash, which may foster their alignment with the character of the area. The current text amendment, 

architectural provisions, and preliminary development plan layout, which includes a 344ft 

separation from nearest residential lot to the noisy dryer end of the car wash,  would impose the 

following design requirements to achieve this objective: 

 

I. Limited to four (4) pumps/eight (8) fueling stations 

II. The fuel canopy shall have a maximum clearance of 15.5ft from the finished grade to the 

underside of the canopy 

Page 136 of 160



 
Page 5  

 

III. The site is permitted one free standing sign only, which shall be monument style, not more 

than 8ft high, and located within 40ft from the driveway of the convenience store with fuel 

pumps on Church Rd. 

IV. At least one electrical vehicle charging station shall be provided. 

V. The Preliminary Layout Plan for the convenience store with fuel pumps and adjoining car 

wash, provided herein at EXHIBIT Q shall be binding. 

VI. The fuel pumps canopy design included herein as EXHIBIT R shall be binding, except, 

however, that the columns may be constructed completely of brick material.   

VII. Architecturally, the convenience store with fuel pumps shall be constructed of a minimum 

80% brick on all sides and shall have pitched roof of shingles material. EXHIBIT S and 

EXHIBIT T, which show the architectural design of the store and the car wash 

respectively, shall be binding. 

 

Regarding the car wash, it is worth noting that apart from the 60ft rear yard building setback, the 

current project text does not stipulate a additional separation distance from nearest residential 

property line to the noisy air dryer end of the car wash. The proposed binding preliminary 

development plan includes a 344.53ft separation. In a nutshell, the proposed project text 

amendment and associated preliminary development plans constitute significant development 

stipulation improvements relative to the current text.  

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Based on the finding that the proposed project text amendments and 

associated preliminary development plans would incorporate traffic considerations in the timing of 

construction of a convenience store with fuel pumps in Area 9 of the Robinson Crossing Planned 

Development and mandate design features that would align the currently permitted convenience store with 

fuel pumps and car wash in the said Area with the character of surrounding developments, approve the 

said suggested amendments and preliminary development plans, and recommend same to the Mayor and 

Board of Aldermen.   
  

 

REPORT PREPARED BY: ___________________________________ DATE: ____________ 
 
MOTION BY: _________________________ SECOND BY: ____________________________ 
 

   

VOTE DORR JONES LEWIS LONG SENGER SINGH STRATTON 

YES ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ 

NO ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ 

ABSTAIN ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ 

 

Venard Asongayi, AICP, CFM, DPA 12/03/2025 

Page 137 of 160



AERIAL VIEW MAP

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community,
Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N
Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA, Geodatastyrelsen,
Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA, Intermap, and the GIS user

PointAddresses

County Outline

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

12/3/2025, 6:00:59 PM
0 0.04 0.080.02 mi

0 0.07 0.130.03 km

1:2,257

City of Olive Branch
Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE INFORMATION

Page 138 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

ROBINSON CROSSING PROJECT TEXT (WITH PROPOSED REVISIONS IN BLUE)

Page 139 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

Convenience store (See Article XIII.)

Page 140 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

Page 141 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

Page 142 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

Page 143 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

Page 144 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

Page 145 of 160



A. The City of Olive Branch shall not issue a building permit for the construction of the  
             convenience store with fuel pumps prior to January 20, 2036 and traffic light signalization of           
             the Malone Road and Church Road intersection.
B. Limited to four (4) pumps/eight (8) fueling stations.
C. The fuel canopy shall have a maximum clearance of 15.5ft from the finished grade to the
             underside of the canopy.
D. The site is permitted one free standing sign only, which shall be monument style, not more
             than 8ft high, and located within 40ft from the driveway of the convenience store with fuel
             pumps on Church Road.
E. At least one electrical vehicle charging station shall be provided.
F. The Preliminary Layout Plan for the convenience store with fuel pumps and adjoining car
             wash, provided herein at EXHIBIT Q shall be binding.
G. The fuel pumps canopy design included herein as EXHIBIT R shall be binding, except, 
             however, that the columns may be constructed completely of brick material. Roofing
             material for canopy may be shingle or dark colored metal material.
H. Architecturally, the convenience store with fuel pumps shall be constructed of a minimum
             80% brick on all sides and shall have pitched roof of shingles or dark colored metal
             material. EXHIBIT S is a prototypical design regarding the roof geometry.
I. A conditional use permit is not required for the convenience store with fuel pumps, which is
             hereby permitted in Area 9, only on the corner lot at the intersection of Malone Road and
             Church Road. This lot may be used for any other permitted use in Area 9, subject to   
             administrative review and approval of construction plans by City Staff.

REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

XIII. CONVENIENCE STORE WITH FUEL PUMPS

Page 146 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

Page 147 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

Page 148 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

Page 149 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

Page 150 of 160



REVISED
JULY 17, 2025

Page 151 of 160



X

X X X X X X X X X X

EX. 18" CMP
FL Elev. = 371.95

N89°54'52"E
243.85'

S0
0°

03
'1

3"
W

40
6.

35
'

N87°28'57"W
212.73'

N
15°27'57"W
94.33'

N
01°05'06"W

305.78'

N89°54'52"E
175.51'

S0
0°

03
'4

1"
W

41
4.

33
'

N87°28'57"W
175.62'

N
01°05'06"W

305.78'

N89°54'52"E
196.36'

S00°05'08"E
423.30'

N87°28'57"W
197.63'

M
A

R
K

ET EX
PR

ESS C
A

R
W

A
SH

35' x 125'

SID
EW

A
LK

EMERGENCY BAIL OUT
LANE

SID
EW

A
LK

SITE PLAN NOTES:

1. PARKING SPACES PROVIDE: 36 WITH 2 HANDICAP SPACES.

2. THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE "X”, AN AREA OF MINIMAL
FLOOD HAZARD, ACCORDING TO FIRM COMMUNITY PANEL NO.
28033C0091H DATED MAY 5, 2014.

3. FOR SITE LIGHTING REQUIREMENTS SEE ES-1.

4. DIMENSIONS SHOWN ALONG PROPERTY AND RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES
ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

5. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING
POSTAL DELIVERY METHOD WITH THE LOCAL POST OFFICE. IF A
PHYSICAL MAILBOX IS REQUIRED, GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PURCHASE, LOCATION, PLACEMENT AND
INSTALLATION.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL INCLUDE ALTERNATE BIDS FOR CONCRETE
AND ASPHALT PAVEMENT WHERE  PAVEMENT TYPES ARE NOT
SPECIFICALLY INDICATED.

7. SEE DETAIL 1/D4.0 FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON LIGHT POLE
BASE.

8. ALL SIDE WALKS SHALL MEET CURRENT ADA AND LOCAL
REGULATIONS.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE AND INSTALL CONCRETE BASE AND
CONDUITS FOR PARKING LOT LIGHTING. REFER TO
ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR NUMBER AND PLACEMENT OF
LIGHTS.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL STUB CONDUIT AND WIRING TO THE
MONUMENT SIGN AND IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FINAL POWER
HOOK-UP.

11. NON-ADA PARKING SPACES AND STRIPING SHALL BE PAINTED
REFER TO DETAIL FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

12. REFER TO ADA PARKING DETAIL FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.
ALL PAINTED PAVING MARKING SUCH AS LETTERING AND ARROWS
SHALL BE PAINTED USING TEMPLATES.

13. ALL PAINTED ARROWS AND STOP BARS SHALL BE PAINTED USING
THERMOPLASTIC REFLECTIVE MATERIALS.

14. UTILITY OWNERS:
WATER - CITY OF OLIVE BRANCH
SANITARY SEWER - CITY OF OLIVE BRANCH
ELECTRIC POWER - NORTHCENTRAL MISSISSIPPI EPA
TELECOM - CENTURYTEL OF NORTH MS, INC.
NATURAL GAS - CITY OF OLIVE BRANCH

DESCRIPTIONDATE BY APVD DATE DESCRIPTION BY APVD DATE DESCRIPTION BY APVD APVDAPVDDATE DESCRIPTION BY DATE DESCRIPTION BY BYDATE DESCRIPTION

S
C

A
LE

S
 A

C
C

O
R

D
IN

G
LY

.

Rev. No.

SHEET OF

B
A

R
 IS

 O
N

E
 IN

C
H

 O
N

TH
IS

 S
H

E
E

T,
A

D
JU

S
T

O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
W

IN
G

.
IF

 N
O

T 
O

N
E

 IN
C

H
 O

N

V
E

R
IF

Y
 S

C
A

LE
S

APVD

0
1"

E-
m

ai
l:

 b
yr

on
@

ho
us

to
ne

ng
r.

co
m

Ph
on

e:
 (

66
2)

 6
47

-1
31

2 
 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g,

 S
ur

ve
yi

ng
, a

nd
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s

H
O

U
ST

O
N

 E
N

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

O
xf

or
d,

 M
is

si
ss

ip
pi

  
38

65
5

P.
O

. 
B
ox

 3
08

7

A
PV

D
.:

C
H

K
.:

D
S
G

N
.:

D
A
TE

:
JO

B
 N

O
.:

S
C
A
LE

:

D
W

G
. 

B
Y:

PR
O

PR
IE

TA
R
Y 

R
IG

H
TS

 C
LA

U
S
E:

 I
N

FO
R
M

A
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 D

A
TA

 C
O

N
TA

IN
ED

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 D

R
A
W

IN
G

 I
S
 C

O
N

FI
D

EN
TI

A
L.

 I
F 

G
IV

EN
 T

O
 A

N
 E

N
TI

TY
 N

O
T 

H
A
V
IN

G
 A

 C
O

N
TR

A
C
TU

A
L 

R
EL

A
TI

O
N

S
H

IP
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
R
, 

TH
E 

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
B
E 

U
S
ED

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

PR
IO

R
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 P
ER

M
IS

S
IO

N
. 

TH
IS

 L
EG

EN
D

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

M
A
R
K
ED

 O
N

 A
N

Y 
R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

S
 H

ER
EO

F 
IN

 W
H

O
LE

 O
R
 I

N
 P

A
R
T:

 H
O

U
S
TO

N
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
  
©

  
C
O

PY
R
IG

H
T 

20
05

E
H

P
LE

A
S

A
N

T 
H

IL
L 

LA
N

D
 &

 D
EV

.
R

O
B

IN
S

O
N

 C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L

C
H

U
R
C
H

 R
O

A
D

, 
O

LI
V
E 

B
R
A
N

C
H

, 
M

S
 3

86
54

S
IT

E 
LA

YO
U

T 
PL

A
N

C3.0
A

N
O

V
. 

20
24

22
4-

19
4.

00
1

A
S
 S

H
O

W
N

A
.R

. 
M

cC
A
C
H

R
EN

B
. 

H
O

U
S
TO

N

B
. 

H
O

U
S
TO

N
B
. 

H
O

U
S
TO

N

7 35

1
C3.0 SCALE: 1" - 30'

SITE LAYOUT PLAN

SCALE: 1" = 
0

30'
60'30'

SIDEWALK DETAILS
(SEE SHEET D3.0)

6" CONC. INTEGRAL CURB
(TYP.) (SEE DETAIL 2&3/D3.0)

CSTORE
GROSS 6,398 SF

36 PARKING SPACES
FFE = 377.50

BA
Y 

#1
1,

32
0 

S.
F.

STANDARD DUTY PAVEMENT
WITH 4" WHITE STRIPING

(SEE SHEET C6.0)

HANDICAP PARKING
(2 TYP.) SEE DETAILS

2,3,4,&5/D2.0.

R1-1 "STOP SIGN" REQ'D

HEAVY-DUTY PAVING
(SEE SHEET C6.0)

 CHURCH RD.

32 L.F. DBL. YELLOW
CONTINUOUS

THERMOPLASTIC
STRIPING REQ'D.

THERMOPLASTIC WHITE
LEGEND DIRECTIONAL

ARROWS (SEE DETAIL 8/D3.0)
AND 24" THERMOPLASTIC
WHITE STOP BAR REQ'D.

10

50' BUILDING SETBACK

20' BUFFER ZONE

12'X12'  DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE
(SEE ARCHITECTURAL)

20
' B

U
FF

ER
 Z

O
N

E

20' BUFFER ZONE

20
' B

U
FF

ER
 Z

O
N

E

50
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K℄ 

M
AL

O
N

E 
R

D
.

HEAVY-DUTY PAVING
(SEE SHEET C6.0)

11

R1-1 "STOP SIGN" REQ'D

32 L.F. DBL. YELLOW
CONTINUOUS
THERMOPLASTIC
STRIPING REQ'D.

THERMOPLASTIC WHITE
LEGEND DIRECTIONAL

ARROWS (SEE DETAIL 8/D3.0)
AND 24" THERMOPLASTIC
WHITE STOP BAR REQ'D.

7

EMERGENCY BAILOUT
LANE EXIT GATE

12'X12'  DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE
(SEE ARCHITECTURAL)

VACUUM
STANCHION

TYP.
36.00'

10

10

8

8

PLATE 2 LANDSCAPE AREA PER PD

PL
AT

E 
1 

LA
N

D
SC

AP
IN

G
 A

R
EA

 P
ER

 P
D

PL
AT

E 
2 

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
EA

 P
ER

 P
D

PLATE 1 LANDSCAPE AREA PER PD

FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

(TBD)

2.11'

83.32'

60.75'

25.00'

12.92'

24.00'

60' BUILDING SETBACK

60
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

1211

68.00'

63.46'

UST's

DETENTION POND

DETENTION POND ESMT.

15' WIDE DRAINAGE ESMT.

MONUMENT SIGN REQ'D.
(SEE SIGNAGE PLANS)

100.72'
16.57'

R25.00'

R40.00'
4.00'

31.14'

120.87'

84.02'
5.00' SIDEWALK WITH

ADA RAMP &
CROSSWALK REQ'D

R30.00'

R15.00'

R15.00'

R5.00'

20.00'
TYP.

9.00' TYP.

61.01'
PAVED

SURFACE

40.00'

30.00'

36.00'

5.00' SIDEWALK TIE TO &
MATCH EX. SLOPE.

231.91'

R20.00'

R15.00'

5.00' FLUME REQ'D.
(SEE DETAIL 3/D3.O)

R25.00'
R25.00'

R80.00'

R5.00'

R15.00'

R25.00'

R15.00'

24.12'

JBHARMISSUE FOR REVIEW6/6/25A

62.71'
PAVED

SURFACE

5.00' FLUME REQ'D.
(SEE DETAIL 3/D3.O)

32 L.F. DBL. YELLOW
CONTINUOUS

THERMOPLASTIC
STRIPING REQ'D.

THERMOPLASTIC WHITE
LEGEND DIRECTIONAL

ARROWS (SEE DETAIL 8/D3.0)
AND 24" THERMOPLASTIC
WHITE STOP BAR REQ'D.

CARWASH
GROSS 4,375 SF

24 PARKING SPACES
FFE = 377.00

20.00'
TYP.

EMPLOYEE
PARKING

R25.00'

R25.00'

84.26'

153.63'

17.54'

42.86' 42.86'

32.86' 14.00'

13.00'
180.38'

63.78'

15.04'

15.55'
91.00'

15.56'

20.52'

59.67'

15.50'

73.00'

73.00'

15.38'

44.90'

44.69'

250.03'

121.97'

24.00'

111.99'

R15.00' R5.00'
TYP.

R20.00'
R15.00'
R15.00'

R25.00'

R10.00'

15.00'

6' WOOD FENCE WITH
MASONRY COLUMNS 50'

O.C. REQ'D.
(SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN)

6' WOOD FENCE WITH
MASONRY COLUMNS 50'

O.C. REQ'D.
(SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN)

36.00'

EXHIBIT Q - PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (LAYOUT)

Page 152 of 160



X X X X X X X X X X

EX. 18" CMP
FL Elev. = 371.95

N89°54'52"E
243.85'

S0
0°

03
'1

3"
W

40
6.

35
'

N87°28'57"W
212.73'

N
15°27'57"W
94.33'

N
01°05'06"W

305.78'

N89°54'52"E
175.51'

S0
0°

03
'4

1"
W

41
4.

33
'

N87°28'57"W
175.62'

N
01°05'06"W

305.78'

N89°54'52"E
196.36'

S00°05'08"E
423.30'

N87°28'57"W
197.63'

QTY SYM SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMMON NAME SIZE SPACING NOTES

96 LAGAESTROEMIA INDICA 'NATCHEZ' NATCHEZ CRAPE MYRTLE 6'-8' ht. 2" ea. As Illustrated 3 cane min. multi-trunk

29 TAXODIUM DISTINCTUM BALD CYPRESS 2.5" calip. As Illustrated Single, straight leader, matching

21 NYSSA SALVATICA BLACK GUM 2.5" calip. As Illustrated Single, straight leader, matching

428 RAPHIOLEPSIS INDICA 'SNOW' SNOW INDIAN HAWTHORN 3 gal. 4' O.C. Full, well-shaped

274 MISCANTHUS SINENSIS 'MORNING LIGHT' NORTHWIND SWITCHGRASS 3 gal. 3' O.C. Full, well-shaped

294 EUONYMOUS ATATUS 'COMPACTA' DWARF WINGED EUONYMOUS 3 gal. 3' O.C. Full, well-shaped

580 LIRIOPE MUSCARI 'VARIEAGATA' VARIEGATED LIRIOPE 4" pots 12" O.C. Full, well-shaped
GROUNDCOVER

SHRUBS

TREES

PLANT SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTIONDATE BY APVD DATE DESCRIPTION BY APVD DATE DESCRIPTION BY APVD APVDAPVDDATE DESCRIPTION BY DATE DESCRIPTION BY BYDATE DESCRIPTION

S
C

A
LE

S
 A

C
C

O
R

D
IN

G
LY

.

Rev. No.

SHEET OF

B
A

R
 IS

 O
N

E
 IN

C
H

 O
N

TH
IS

 S
H

E
E

T,
A

D
JU

S
T

O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
W

IN
G

.
IF

 N
O

T 
O

N
E

 IN
C

H
 O

N

V
E

R
IF

Y
 S

C
A

LE
S

APVD

0
1"

E-
m

ai
l:

 b
yr

on
@

ho
us

to
ne

ng
r.

co
m

Ph
on

e:
 (

66
2)

 6
47

-1
31

2 
 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g,

 S
ur

ve
yi

ng
, a

nd
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s

H
O

U
ST

O
N

 E
N

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

O
xf

or
d,

 M
is

si
ss

ip
pi

  
38

65
5

P.
O

. 
B
ox

 3
08

7

A
PV

D
.:

C
H

K
.:

D
S
G

N
.:

D
A
TE

:
JO

B
 N

O
.:

S
C
A
LE

:

D
W

G
. 

B
Y:

PR
O

PR
IE

TA
R
Y 

R
IG

H
TS

 C
LA

U
S
E:

 I
N

FO
R
M

A
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 D

A
TA

 C
O

N
TA

IN
ED

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 D

R
A
W

IN
G

 I
S
 C

O
N

FI
D

EN
TI

A
L.

 I
F 

G
IV

EN
 T

O
 A

N
 E

N
TI

TY
 N

O
T 

H
A
V
IN

G
 A

 C
O

N
TR

A
C
TU

A
L 

R
EL

A
TI

O
N

S
H

IP
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
R
, 

TH
E 

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
B
E 

U
S
ED

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

PR
IO

R
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 P
ER

M
IS

S
IO

N
. 

TH
IS

 L
EG

EN
D

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

M
A
R
K
ED

 O
N

 A
N

Y 
R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

S
 H

ER
EO

F 
IN

 W
H

O
LE

 O
R
 I

N
 P

A
R
T:

 H
O

U
S
TO

N
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
  
©

  
C
O

PY
R
IG

H
T 

20
05

E
H

P
LE

A
S

A
N

T 
H

IL
L 

LA
N

D
 &

 D
EV

.
R

O
B

IN
S

O
N

 C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L

C
H

U
R
C
H

 R
O

A
D

, 
O

LI
V
E 

B
R
A
N

C
H

, 
M

S
 3

86
54

S
IT

E 
LA

N
D

S
C
A
PI

N
G

 P
LA

N

L1.0
A

N
O

V
. 

20
24

22
4-

19
4.

00
1

A
S
 S

H
O

W
N

M
.S

. 
K
IN

G
M

.S
. 

K
IN

G

B
. 

H
O

U
S
TO

N
B
. 

H
O

U
S
TO

N

22 35

PLANTING NOTES:

1. Plants shalll be nursery grown and material shall conform to the latest
edition of American Standard for nursery stock (ANSW-S60.1), as
published by the American Association of Nurserymen.

2. Roots balls shall conform to A.A.N. Standards. Only natural fiber burlap
will be acceptable for wrapping.

3. Balli depths on some trees in a single group may vary. In general, 1/4
the ball shoulid be above grade. But, if depths vary, all trees in a group
should set so that the base of the trunks will appear to be at the same
relative elevation above grade.

4. Plant locations to staked in field and approved prior to installlation.
5. Planting plans shall govern quantities. Any discrepancies or omissions in

lists of materials should be reported to the Project Manager.
6. Substitution of plant materials specified can only occur by prior approval

of Project Manager.
7. The !landscape contractor shall furnish, install' and/or dig, ball, burlap

and transplant all plant materials listed on the plant schedule. Bareroot
planting is not permitted for any tree or shrub.

8. landscape contrador to guarantee plant materials for one growing
season folilowing substantial completion per specifications.

9. Establish plant bed configurations. Project Manager to approve bed
layout in field. Prepare plant beds per specifications.

10. In event of planting beds and mulch being required, the contractor
shalll install black fiber mesh under the mul:ch to prevent weed growth.

11. Verification of total quantities as shown on the plant llist shall be the
responsibility of the planting contractor and the totall quantities shall be
as required on the pllanting plan.

12. B&B as Listed under 11 Root11 in the plant list indicated balled and
burlapped.

13. All plants shall bear the same relationship to finished grade as it bore
to grade in nursery.

14. Typical planting backfill mixture shall consist of 1 part ground pine bark
to 4 parts existing soil with "Agriform11 20-1-5 formulation (or equal) at
manufacturer's rate.

15. All root balls removed from containers shall be scarified prior to
backfilling.

16. Tree wrap is to be used on thin bark species only (such as maples).
17. No deciduous or evergreen trees will be accepted if there is more than

one ll ader unless the tree is specified as multi-trunk.
18. All disturbed lawn areas shall be sodded.

1
L1.0 SCALE: 1" - 40'

SITE LANDSCAPING PLAN

SCALE: 1" = 
0

40'
80'40'

(6) BALD CYPRESS

(96) NATCHEZ CRAPE MYRTLE

(286) SNOW INDIAN HAWTHORN

(294) DWARF WINGED
EUONYMOUS

(274) MISCANTHUS
SINENSIS 'MORNING LIGHT'

(10) BLACK GUM

(5) BALD CYPRESS

(6) BALD CYPRESS

(2) BALD CYPRESS

(4) BALD CYPRESS

(5) BALD CYPRESS

JBHARMISSUE FOR REVIEW6/6/25A

 CHURCH RD.

℄ 
M

AL
O

N
E 

R
D

.

584 LF OF 6' HIGH WOOD PRIVACY FENCE W/ BRICK COLUMNS 50' O.C.
PER PLATE 2 REQ'D.

422 LF OF 6' HIGH WOOD
PRIVACY FENCE W/

BRICK COLUMNS 50' O.C.
PER PLATE 2 REQ'D.

(3) BLACK GUM

(8) BLACK GUM

(26) SNOW INDIAN HAWTHORN

(96) SNOW INDIAN HAWTHORN

(86) SNOW INDIAN HAWTHORN

EXHIBIT Q' - PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN

Page 153 of 160



EXTER IOR RENDER ING S : FUEL CANOPY N .T . S .

EXHIBIT R

Page 154 of 160



PT-1
PT-1

GL-1

AP-1

PT-1

BT-1

PT-1

GL-1

PT-1

PT-1GL-1

GL-1
AP-1

GL-1

NOR TH ELE VATION:  1/8”=1’ -0”

WEST ELE VATION:  1/8”=1’ -0”

FALSE SHUTTER PANELS;  PT-1

BT-1

BT-1

AP-1

FALSE SHUTTER PANELS;  PT-1

BT-1

PT-1

EXTER IOR ELEVAT ION MATER I A L S  N . T . S .

EXHIBIT S

Page 155 of 160



FRONT  (NOR TH)  ELE VATION:  1/8”=1’ -0” SIDE ELE VATION:  1/8”=1’ -0”

SOUTH ELE VATION:  1/8”=1’ -0”

AP-1

PT-1 FALSE SHUTTERS; PT-1

BT-1

AP-1

BT-1

BT-1 PT-1

BT-1:  	 General Shale Spalding Tudor - Modular
	 Mortar: Spec Mix - Freedom Gray
PT-1:  	 Hardie Trim Board - Smooth
	 Sherwin Williams - SW7073 Brainstorm Bronze
GL-1:  	 Windsor Pinnacle Select Casement
	 3 over 4 Lites - Bronze
AP-1: 	 Architectural Shingle 

Mater ia l  Legend: 

EXTER IOR ELEVAT ION MATER I A L S

EXHIBIT S 

Page 156 of 160



EXHIBIT T

Page 157 of 160



EXHIBIT T

Page 158 of 160



EXHIBIT T

Page 159 of 160



CURRENT ZONING MAP

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community,
Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N
Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA, Geodatastyrelsen,
Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA, Intermap, and the GIS user

Zoning

A

A-R

A-R OVERLAY

C-1

C-2

C-3

C-4

C-5

CM OVERLAY

ER

HISTORIC DISTRICT OVERLAY

M-1

M-2

M-3

MAIN STREET DISTRICT

O

PB

PBP

PO

PUD

PUD OVERLAY

R-1

R-10

R-12

R-12 OVERLAY

R-15

R-15 OVERLAY

R-2

R-20

R-20 OVERLAY

R-3

R-30

R-30 OVERLAY

R-4

R-40

R-40 OVERLAY

R-6

R-6 OVERLAY

R-8

R-8 OVERLAY

R-9

RM-6

RM-8

RO

PointAddresses

County Outline

Tax Parcels

<all other values>

PRELIMINARY 2024 LANDROLL

PRELIMINARY 2025 LANDROLL

Roads

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Local Road

Private Road

Ramp

IH

12/3/2025, 6:04:21 PM
0 0.04 0.080.02 mi

0 0.07 0.130.03 km

1:2,257

City of Olive Branch
Disclaimer: The City of Olive Branch, its employees, agents and personnel, MAKES NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY FOR FITNESS OF USE FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE INFORMATION

Page 160 of 160


	 Call to Order:
	 Roll Call:
	 Approval of Minutes:
	1. Minutes from Meeting of November 12, 2025
	2025-11-12 PC MINUTES


	 Old Business:
	1. Application for a Preliminary Plat for Fox Paw Cre
	PC SD25-0034 FOX PAW CREEK SUBD Staff Report

	2. Application for a Zoning Map Amendment, submitted 
	ZP25-0012 Staff Report PC 12-09-25

	3. Application for a Final Plat for Prasad Rheumotolg
	SD25-0031 Staff Report PC 12-09-25


	 New Business:
	1. Application to amend Preliminary Plat Approval Con
	Stf Rpt  PC- RoseWood Amend Cond -6 12-09-25

	2. Application for a Final Plat for Ansley Point Subd
	SD25-0036 PC Report - Ansley Point 2 Lot

	3. Application for a Final Plat for Malco Olive Branc
	SD25-0038 FINAL PLAT MALCO OB SUBD PH 3

	4. Application to Amend the Project Text for The Oaks
	PD-25-0002 Staff Report PC

	5. Application for a Preliminary Plat for The Crossin
	SD25-0037_The Crossing at Olive Branch_ Full PC Staff Report

	6. Application to Amend the Project Text for Robinson
	Amend Robinson Crossing Area 9_Full Staff Report to PC


	 Adjournment



